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URANIUM RESOURCES, INC.  

ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-KSB  
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001  

PART I  

The "Company" or "Registrant" is used in this report to refer to Uranium Resources, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries. Items 1 and 2 
contain "forward-looking statements." These statements include, without limitation, statements relating to management's expectations regarding 
the Company's mineralized materials, timing of receipt of mining permits, production capacity of mining operations planned for properties in 
South Texas and New Mexico and planned dates for commencement of production at such properties, business strategies and other plans and 
objectives of the Company's management for future operations and activities and other such matters. The words "believes," "plans," "intends," 
"strategy," "projects," "targets," or "anticipates" and similar expressions identify forward-looking statements. The Company does not undertake 
to update, revise or correct any of the forward-looking information. Readers are cautioned that such forward-looking statements should be read 
in conjunction with the Company's disclosures under the heading: "Cautionary Statements" beginning on page 12.  

Certain terms used in this Form 10-KSB are defined in the "Glossary of Certain Terms" appearing at the end of Part I hereto.  

Item 1. Description of Business  

OVERVIEW OF THE URANIUM INDUSTRY  

The only significant commercial use for uranium is as fuel for nuclear power plants for the generation of electricity. During 2000, 435 nuclear 
power plants were operating in the world and consumed an estimated 166 million pounds of uranium. World wide production of uranium was 
only about 91 million pounds. In the United States there are 103 nuclear power plants that consume about 50 million pounds of uranium per 
year and produce about 22% of the electricity used.  

Based on reports by the Ux Consulting Company, LLC ("Ux") and the Uranium Institute ("UI"), since the early 1990s, worldwide uranium 
production has satisfied only 50% to 55% of worldwide demand, and this ratio has also been true in the Western world. Ux reports that the gap 
has been filled by secondary supplies, such as inventories held by governments, utilities and others in the fuel cycle, including the highly 
enriched uranium (HEU) inventories which are a result of the agreement between the US and Russia to blend down nuclear warheads. In the 
period 2002-2010 Ux projects western production to be sufficient to cover only 55% of western demand.  

Ux reports that secondary sources combined with uranium production from existing uranium mines will not be sufficient to meet the world's 
requirements. New production will be needed. Ux projects that the industry will need uranium prices significantly higher than current prices to 
stimulate the capital investment needed to support such new production.  

Spot price is the price at which uranium may be purchased for delivery within one year. Spot prices have been more volatile historically than 
long-term contract prices, increasing from $6.00 per pound in 1973 to $43.00 per pound in 1978, declining to $7.25 per pound in October 1991, 
increasing to $16.50 per pound in May 1996 and again declining to $7.10 at December 31, 2000. Since year-end 2000 the spot price has 
increased to $9.60 at December 31, 2001. The spot price at March 18, 2002 was $9.90.  
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The following graph shows spot prices per pound from 1980 to March 18, 2002, as reported by Trade Tech.  

Average Annual Spot Price per Pound of Uranium  

[GRAPH]  

All prices beginning in 1993 represent U\\3\\O\\8\\ deliveries available to U.S. utilities.  
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OUR BUSINESS  

The Company  

We were organized in 1977 to mine uranium in the United States using the in situ leach mining process, a process in which groundwater 
fortified with oxidizing agents is pumped into the ore body causing the uranium contained in the ore to dissolve. The resulting solution is 
pumped to the surface where it is further processed to a dried form of uranium that is shipped to conversion facilities for sale to our customers. 
This process is generally more cost effective and environmentally benign than conventional mining techniques.  

Since 1988 we have produced about 6.1 million pounds of uranium from two mines in South Texas. Our Kingsville Dome mine produced 
about 3.5 million pounds and the Rosita mine produced about 2.6 million pounds. Additional mineralized uranium materials exist at Kingsville 
Dome, but additional capital investment will be required in order to mine this property. The Rosita property is essentially at the end of its 
productive capacity, although some minor mineralized uranium materials remain that may be produced.  

We stopped producing uranium in July 1999 because we were unable to sell uranium at a profit. As of December 31, 2001 the spot price was 
$9.60. We must be able to sell uranium for at least $12 per pound to achieve a profit.  

In 1998, 1999 and 2000 we wrote down the carrying value of our properties. The 1998 writedown was about $18,000,000 ($12.3 million for 
Kingsville Dome and $5.6 million for Rosita) and was a non-cash charge to earnings in the third quarter of 1998. In 1999 the writedown 
resulted in a pre-tax charge to earnings of about $38.4 million. In 2000 the writedown resulted in a pre-tax charge to earnings of about $1.4 
million. After these write-downs, our uranium properties had a net book value of about $$774,000 at December 31, 2000 compared to $61.4 
million at December 31, 1997.  

In addition to the Kingsville Dome property, we have another property in South Texas - the Vasquez property, and properties in New Mexico. 
Commencement of production at any of these properties will be dependent on an increase in uranium prices to profitable levels, the availability 
of sales contracts and the availability of capital.  

As of December 31, 2001 we had 19 employees, including one geologist, four engineers and two certified public accountants. We have field 
offices at Kingsville Dome, Rosita and Crownpoint.  

The In Situ Leach Mining Process  

The in situ leach mining process is a form of solution mining. It differs dramatically from conventional mining techniques. The in situ leach 
technique avoids the movement and milling of significant quantities of rock and ore as well as mill tailing waste associated with more 
traditional mining methods. It is generally more cost-effective and environmentally benign than conventional mining. Historically, the majority 
of United States uranium production resulted from either open pit surface mines or underground shaft operations.  

The in situ leach process was first tested for the production of uranium in the mid-1960s and was first applied to a commercial-scale project in 
1975 in South Texas. It was well established in South Texas by the late 1970's where it was employed in about twenty commercial projects, 
including two operated by us.  

In the in situ leach process, groundwater fortified with oxygen and other solubilizing agents is pumped into a permeable ore body causing the 
uranium contained in the ore to dissolve. The resulting solution is pumped to the surface. The fluid-bearing uranium is then circulated to an ion 
exchange column  
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on the surface where uranium is extracted from the fluid onto resin beads. The fluid is then reinjected into the ore body. When the ion exchange 
column's resin beads are loaded with uranium they are removed and flushed with a salt-water solution, which precipitates the uranium from the 
beads. This leaves the uranium in slurry, which is then dried and packaged for shipment as uranium powder.  

We have historically used a central plant for the ion exchange. In order to increase operating efficiency and reduce future capital expenditures, 
we began the design and development of wellfield-specific remote ion exchange methodology. Instead of piping the solutions over large 
distances through large diameter pipe lines and mixing the waters of several wellfields together, each wellfield will be mined using a dedicated 
satellite ion exchange facility. This will allow ion exchange to take place at wellfield instead of at the central plant. A wellfield consists of a 
series of injection wells, production (extraction) wells and monitoring wells drilled in specified patterns. Wellfield pattern is crucial to 
minimizing costs and maximizing efficiencies of production. The satellite facilities allow mining of each wellfield using its own native 
groundwater. This eliminates problems associated with progressive buildup of dissolved solids in the groundwater, thereby enhancing mining 
efficiencies and uranium recoveries.  

Environmental Considerations and Permitting  

Uranium mining is regulated by the federal government, states and, where conducted in Indian Country, by Indian tribes. Compliance with 
such regulation has a material effect on the economics of our operations and the timing of project development. Our primary regulatory costs 
have been related to obtaining licenses and permits from federal and state agencies before the commencement of mining activities.  

Radioactive Material License. Before commencing operations in both Texas and New Mexico, we must obtain a radioactive material license. 
Under the federal Atomic Energy Act the United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission has primary jurisdiction over the issuance of a 
radioactive material license. However, the Atomic Energy Act also allows for states with regulatory programs deemed satisfactory by the 
Commission to take primary responsibility for issuing the radioactive material license. The Commission has ceded jurisdiction for such licenses 
to Texas but not to New Mexico.  

The Texas Department of Health is the permitting agency for the radioactive materials license. For operations in New Mexico, radioactive 
material licensing is handled directly by the United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission.  

See "PROPERTIES" and "LEGAL PROCEEDINGS" for the status of our radioactive materials license for New Mexico and our Texas 
properties.  

Underground Injection Control Permits("UIC"). The federal Safe Drinking Water Act creates a nationwide regulatory program protecting 
groundwater. This act is administered by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (the "USEPA"). However, to avoid the burden of 
dual federal and state (or Indian tribal) regulation, the Safe Drinking Water Act allows for the UIC permits issued by states (and Indian tribes 
determined eligible for treatment as states) to satisfy the UIC permit required under the Safe Drinking Water Act under two conditions. First 
the state's program must have been granted primary enforcement responsibility or primacy. Second, the USEPA must have granted, upon 
request by the state, an aquifer exemption. The USEPA may delay or decline to process the state's application if the USEPA questions the 
state's jurisdiction over the mine site.  

Texas has been granted primacy for its UIC programs, and the Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission administers UIC permits. 
The Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission also regulates air quality and surface deposition or discharge of treated wastewater 
associated with the in situ leach mining process.  

New Mexico has also been granted primacy for its program. The Navajo Nation has been determined eligible for treatment as a state, but it has 
not requested the grant of primacy from the USEPA.  
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Until the Navajo Nation has been granted primacy, in situ leach uranium mining activities within Navajo Nation jurisdiction will require UIC 
permit from the USEPA. Despite some procedural differences, the substantive requirements of the Texas, New Mexico and USEPA 
underground injection control programs are very similar.  

Properties located in Indian Country and where status as Indian Country is in dispute remain subject to the jurisdiction of the USEPA. Some of 
our properties are located in areas that are Indian Country. In others, the status is in dispute. For these properties we are a bystander in a dispute 
between New Mexico regulators and the USEPA.  

See "PROPERTIES" AND "LEGAL PROCEEDINGS" for a description of the status of our UIC permits in Texas and New Mexico.  

Other. In addition to radioactive materials licenses and underground injection control permit, we are also required to obtain from governmental 
authorities a number of other permits or exemptions, such as for waste water discharge, land application of treated waste water, and for air 
emissions.  

The current environmental regulatory program for the in situ leach industry is well established. Many in situ leach mines have gone full cycle 
without any significant environmental impact. However, the public anti-nuclear lobby can make environmental permitting difficult and timing 
less than predictable.  

In order for a licensee to receive final release from further radioactive materials license obligations after all of its mining and post-mining 
clean-up have been completed, approval must be issued by the Texas Department of Health along with concurrence from the United States 
Nuclear Regulatory Commission.  

In addition to the costs and responsibilities associated with obtaining and maintaining permits and the regulation of production activities, we 
are subject to environmental laws and regulations applicable to the ownership and operation of real property in general, including but not 
limited to the potential responsibility for the activities of prior owners and operators.  

Reclamation and Restoration Costs and Bonding Requirements  

At the conclusion of mining, a mine site is decommissioned and decontaminated, and each wellfield is restored and reclaimed. Restoration 
involves returning the aquifer to its pre-mining use and removing evidence of surface disturbance. Restoration can be accomplished by flushing 
the ore zone with native ground water or using reverse osmosis to remove ions, minerals and salts to provide clean water for reinjection to flush 
the ore zone. Decommissioning and decontamination entails dismantling and removing the structures, equipment and materials used at the site 
during the mining and restoration activities.  

Our surety bond requirement at December 31, 2001 was about $4.2 million and related to our operations at Kingsville Dome and Rosita. We 
have posted surety bonds in that amount from the United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company and have deposited as collateral for such 
bonds cash of about $1.4 million at December 31, 2001. We are obligated to fund the cash collateral account with an additional $0.50 for each 
pound of uranium produced until the account accumulates an additional $1.0 million. We estimate that our actual reclamation liabilities at 
December 31, 2001 are about $4.7 million, which has been charged to earnings. These financial surety obligations are reviewed and revised 
periodically by the Texas regulators. Before we can commence operations we must post an additional $3.5 million in bonds for such costs with 
the state of Texas, and we have no commitment from our bonding company to post such a bond without 100% cash collateral. See "LEGAL 
PROCEEDINGS."  

We are performing ongoing restoration and reclamation at certain of our wellfields at Rosita and Kingsville Dome. In October 2000 we signed 
an agreement with the State of Texas and our bonding company that provided us access to $2.2 million pledged to secure restoration bonds (the 
"Restoration Agreement"). A second Restoration Agreement was entered into in January 2002 covering January through  
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April 2002. This agreement provides us access to approximately $600,000 during this four-month period to continue to conduct restoration 
activities. For each dollar released from the cash collateral account, the surety bonds are reduced by one dollar.  

We expect to post a surety bond of about $1.3 million prior to receiving the permits for the mining of the Vasquez project and that all or a 
major portion will need to be collateralized by cash.  

In New Mexico, surety bonding will be required before commencement of mining. The amount of the surety bond will be subject to annual 
review and revision by the United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission and the State of New Mexico or the USEPA.  

Water Rights  

Water is essential to the in situ leach process. It is readily available in South Texas. In Texas water is subject to capture, and we do not have to 
acquire water rights through a state administrative process. In New Mexico water rights are administered through the New Mexico State 
Engineer and can be subject to Indian tribal jurisdictional claims. New water rights or changes in purpose or place of use or points of diversion 
of existing water rights, such as those in the San Juan and Gallup Basins where our properties are located, must be obtained by permit from the 
State Engineer. Applications may be approved subject to conditions that govern exercise of the water rights.  

Jurisdiction over water rights becomes an issue in New Mexico when an Indian nation, such as the Navajo Nation, objects to the State 
Engineer's authority and claims tribal jurisdiction over Indian Country. This issue may result in litigation between the Indian nation and the 
state, which may delay action on water right applications, and can require applications to the appropriate Indian nation and continuing 
jurisdiction by the Indian nation over use of the water. The foregoing issues arise to a greater or lesser extent in connection with our New 
Mexico properties.  

In New Mexico, we hold approved water rights to provide sufficient water to conduct mining at the Churchrock project for the projected life of 
the mine. We also hold certain unprotested senior water rights applications that, when approved, would provide sufficient water for the 
projected life of the Crownpoint project. The water rights for the Crownpoint project are in the review process by the New Mexico State 
Engineer Offices. We cannot estimate the timing of the completion of such review but do expect a favorable result once the review is 
completed.  

Mineralized Uranium Materials  

We have previously reported the proven and probable reserve base for each of our projects in Texas and New Mexico assuming that each of 
these projects would be placed into production at a future date. Because the price of uranium remains unprofitable, in December 1999 we 
reclassified our significant uranium holdings from reserves to mineralized uranium materials consistent with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission definitions. See "Glossary."  

Marketing Strategy/Uranium Sales Contracts  

Long-term contracts have historically been our primary source of revenue. There were no uranium sales in 2001 and in 2000 we had sales to 
one customer that amounted to more than 10% of total sales.  

Currently, we have no scheduled uranium deliveries under contract for 2002 or beyond.  

Competition  

We market uranium to utilities in direct competition with supplies available from various sources worldwide. The Company competes 
primarily based on price.  

6  



Item 2. Description of Properties  

South Texas  

Kingsville Dome  

The Property. The Kingsville Dome property consists of mineral leases from private landowners on about 3,000 gross and net acres located in 
central Kleberg County, Texas. The leases provide for royalties based upon a percentage of uranium sales of 6.25%. The leases have expiration 
dates ranging from 2000 to 2007. With a few minor exceptions, all the leases contain clauses that permit us to extend the leases not held by 
production by payment of a per acre royalty ranging from $10 to $30.  

Production History. Initial production commenced in May 1988. Since then we have produced a total of 3.5 million pounds. Production was 
stopped July 1999 because of depressed uranium prices.  

Further Development Potential. Further exploration and development activities are not currently planned and are not anticipated until uranium 
prices increase. We believe that there is a significant quantity of uranium remaining at Kingsville Dome that could be mined if prices were 
favorable and sufficient funding for delineation and development were available. We spent about $100,000 in capital expenditures in 2001. 
Significant expenditures are not expected in 2002.  

Permitting Status. Texas has been granted primacy for its UIC programs, and the Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission 
administers UIC permits. The Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission also regulates air quality and surface deposition or discharge 
of treated wastewater associated with the in situ leach mining process. A radioactive material license and underground injection control permit 
have been issued. As new areas are proposed for production, minor amendments to the license and permit are required. Our Production Area 
Authorization #3 is being reviewed by the TNRCC. See "LEGAL PROCEEDINGS." The term of the license and underground injection control 
permit is open-ended.  

Restoration and Reclamation. We spent about $415,000 in restoration costs at Kingsville Dome in 2000 and $930,000 in 2001 that was funded 
under the Restoration Agreement. See "OUR BUSINESS - Reclamation and Restoration Costs and Bonding Requirements" for a discussion of 
the Restoration Agreement.  

Rosita  

The Property. The Rosita property consists of mineral leases on about 3,000 gross and net acres located in northeastern Duval County, Texas. 
The leases provide for royalties based upon a percentage of uranium sales of 6.25%. All of the leases have are beyond their expiration dates 
and, with a few minor exceptions, all contain clauses that permit us to extend the leases not held by production by payment of a per acre royalty 
ranging from $10 to $30. We have paid such royalties on all material acreage.  

Production History. From 1990 through July 1999 we produced 2.7 million pounds. Because of depressed uranium prices Rosita was shut-in 
and placed on stand-by in July 1999.  

Further Development Potential. We spent about $56,000 in capital expenditures in 2001. Significant expenditures are not expected in 2002.  

Permitting Status. Texas has been granted primacy for its UIC programs, and the Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission 
administers UIC permits. The Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission also regulates air quality and surface deposition or discharge 
of treated wastewater associated with the in situ leach mining process. We have the radioactive materials license and underground injection 
control permit for this property. Some minor amendments for further production within the permit area will be required if development 
proceeds. The term of the license and UIC permit is effectively open-ended.  
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Restoration and Reclamation. We spent about $410,000 on restoration costs in 2000 and $730,000 in 2001 that was funded under the 
Restoration Agreement. See "OUR BUSINESS - Reclamation and Restoration Costs and Bonding Requirements" for a discussion of the 
Restoration Agreement.  

Vasquez  

The Property. The property consists of four mineral leases on 842 gross and net acres located in southwestern Duval County, Texas. The lease 
term expired in February 2000. We tendered payment under the shut-in royalty clause in 2000 and 2001. The lessor returned the shut-in royalty 
payments for 2000 and 2001 without disclosing their reasons for rejecting the payment. We believe that we continue to hold our rights to the 
property under either the shut-in royalty or the continuing development clauses of the leases. The leases provide for a 6.25% royalty based on 
uranium sales. We have commenced an action in District Court in Duval County to declare that our leases remain in effect. See "LEGAL 
PROCEEDINGS."  

Development Plan. The timing of production will be dependent on a number of factors, including raising additional capital of about $3.0 
million for construction, development and financial surety needs.  

Permitting Status. All of the required permits for this property have been received from the Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission 
and the Texas Department of Health.  

New Mexico Properties  

General. We have various interests in properties located in New Mexico. We have patented and unpatented mining claims, mineral leases and 
some surface leases from private parties, the Navajo Nation and Navajo allottees.  

Churchrock  

The Property. The Churchrock project encompasses about 2,200 gross and net acres. The properties are located in McKinley County, New 
Mexico and consist of three parcels, known as Section 8, Section 17 and Mancos. None of these parcels lies within the area generally 
recognized as constituting the Navajo Reservation. We own the mineral estate in fee for both Sections 17 and the Mancos properties. The 
surface estate on Section 17 is owned by the United States Government and held in trust for the Navajo Nation. We own patented and 
unpatented mining claims on Section 8.  

Development Plan. We anticipate that Churchrock will be the first of our New Mexico properties we will develop. We spent about $62,000 in 
2001 for permitting activities and land holding costs. We do not anticipate significant spending in 2002.  

Water Rights. The State Engineer approved our water rights application in October 1999 and granted us sufficient water rights for the life of 
Churchrock.  

Permitting Status. We have the radioactive material license for Section 8. This license is subject to the continuing proceedings described under 
"LEGAL PROCEEDINGS." With respect to the UIC permits, see "LEGAL PROCEEDINGS." We do not plan to pursue permits for Mancos at 
this time.  

Crownpoint  

The Property. The Crownpoint properties are located in the San Juan Basin, 22 miles northeast of our Churchrock deposits and 35 miles 
northeast of Gallup, New Mexico, adjacent to the town of Crownpoint. The Properties consist of 1,578 gross and net acres, as follows:  
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(a) 162 gross and net acres on Section 24. We own 100% of the mineral estate on this acreage pursuant to a combination of a 40% fee interest, 
a mineral lease on the other 60% of the unpatented mining claims. This acreage is subject to our obligation to pay a production payment of 
$450,000 on the first 50,000 pounds of uranium produced;  

(b) 959 gross and net acres on Sections 19 and 29 pursuant to a lease from private mineral owners (expiring August 2014) which provides for a 
royalty of 10% based on uranium sales; and  

(c) 457 gross and net acres of unpatented mining claims in Sections 9, 24 and 25.  

Development Plan. We anticipate that Crownpoint will be the second of our New Mexico properties that we will develop. We spent about 
$106,000 in 2001 for permitting activities and land holding costs. We do not anticipate significant spending in 2002.  

Water Rights. We have three pending applications for appropriations of water which give us the first three "positions in line" on the hearings 
list for the San Juan Basin. Certain of the water rights may involve a claim of jurisdiction by the Navajo Nation.  

Permitting Status. See "LEGAL PROCEEDINGS" for a discussion of the radioactive material license for Crownpoint. The surface estate on 
Section 19 and 29 is owned by the United States Government and held in trust for the Navajo Nation and may be subject to the same 
jurisdictional dispute with respect to the UIC permit as for Section 8 and 17 in Churchrock.  

Unit I Property. In addition to the foregoing, we have 480 gross and net acres of mineral leases on three separate parcels from Navajo allottees 
who are the beneficial owners of the surface and mineral rights. The leases are subject to approval by the Bureau of Indian Affairs. Such 
approval has not been received. If issued the leases have a ten-year term and provides for a sliding scale royalty ranging from 6.25% at prices 
below $15 per pound to 25% if prices exceed $63 per pound. There are six other parcels that we had under lease on the same terms as above 
but relinquished in 2000.  

Other Properties. In March 1997 we acquired the fee interest in 177,000 acres and the exploration rights through 2014 on an additional 346,000 
acres in north western New Mexico. To maintain the exploration rights we must spend $200,000 per year on exploration through 2007 and 
$400,000 per year thereafter through 2014. We have been informed by the grantor of such rights that we are in default of our exploration 
commitment and that unless the default is cured the exploration agreement may be cancelled. We do not expect to be able to cure the alleged 
default within the time frame specified. The grantor has refused to waive the default. We do not believe that the loss of these exploration rights 
will have a material adverse effect on us.  

Insurance  

Our properties primarily consist of the rights to mine uranium on leased land, and improvements in the form of buildings, pipelines, plant and 
related uranium extraction equipment. Such property is covered by various types of insurance including property and casualty, liability and 
umbrella coverage. We have not experienced any material uninsured or under insured losses related to our properties in the past and believe 
that sufficient insurance coverage is in place so future losses if sustained would not be material.  

Reclaimed Properties  

We have completed production and groundwater restoration on our Benavides and Longoria projects in South Texas. We completed the final 
stages of surface reclamation on these projects and received full and final release for these sites in 1999.  

We acquired the Section 17 leases in the New Mexico Churchrock district from United Nuclear Corporation. It had conducted underground 
mining for uranium on Section 17 and had reclaimed these  
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properties. In the acquisition, we assumed any liability of United Nuclear for any remaining remediation work that might be required. The New 
Mexico Environmental Department has not determined what, if any, additional remediation will be required under the New Mexico Mining 
Act. If more remediation work is required, we believe it will not involve material expenditures.  

Item 3. Legal Proceedings  

New Mexico Radioactive Material License.  

In New Mexico, uranium production requires a radioactive materials license issued by the United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission. We 
applied for one license covering almost all properties located in both the Churchrock and Crownpoint districts. The Commission issued an 
operating license in January 1998 that would allow operations to begin in the Churchrock district. In mid-1998, the Commission determined 
that certain Churchrock and Crownpoint residents who requested a hearing had standing to raise certain objections to the license. An 
Administrative Law Judge conducted a hearing during 1999. The law judge upheld the license and granted our request to defer any dispute on 
all but the Churchrock property until we made a decision whether to mine these other properties.  

The ruling was appealed to the Commission. On January 31, 2000 the Commission issued an order concurring with the technical, substantive 
and legal findings of the Administrative Law Judge, but the Commission also determined that we must proceed with the hearing process for the 
other New Mexico properties beyond Churchrock. We expect that the hearing process will resume in early 2002. Although all the decisions to 
date have been favorable, there can be no assurance that the license will be maintained in its current form.  

New Mexico UIC Permit.  

We are involved in a jurisdictional dispute among the state of New Mexico, the USEPA and the Navajo Nation over whether a portion of our 
Churchrock and Crownpoint properties is in Indian County. Both the state of New Mexico and the USEPA are asserting jurisdiction over the 
UIC program for such properties.  

In 1989 the USEPA issued an aquifer exemption covering that portion of the Churchrock site known as Section 8, and the New Mexico 
Environmental Department issued a UIC permit for Section 8. In 1994 the New Mexico Environmental Department issued an amended UIC 
permit covering both Section 8 and Section 17. The permit for Section 17 was contested by the Navajo Nation. It claimed jurisdiction over 
Section 17 because the Navajo Nation owns the surface estate. The USEPA refused to amend the aquifer exemption covering Section 8 to add  
Section 17.  

In 1996 we filed with the New Mexico Environmental Department two applications to renew the UIC permit in two parts, one covering Section 
8 and the other Section 17. Because the renewal application was timely filed, the permit covering the Section 8 property has remained 
continuously in effect pending final determination on the renewal application by the New Mexico Environmental Department. That 
determination has not been made.  

In 1996 the Navajo Nation asserted jurisdiction over Section 8, claiming that the land lies within a dependent Indian community. Because of 
the dispute over Section 8, the USEPA determined a USEPA permit would be required for  
Section 8. We appealed this determination to the United States Court of Appeals for the Tenth Circuit. In January 2000 the court determined 
that the USEPA had jurisdiction and remanded the matter back to USEPA for further proceedings. Until there is more certainty regarding 
uranium prices we do not expect to request any action by the USEPA. We cannot predict the outcome of this matter. This could potentially 
delay or obstruct development of Section 8.  
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Despite that dispute we maintain good relations with the State of New Mexico, the Navajo Nation, and the USEPA. However, there can be no 
assurance that the jurisdictional dispute will not have a material adverse effect on our development plans in New Mexico.  

Kingsville Dome Production Area 3  

We are involved in a dispute with certain intervenors over whether a hearing is required for a new production area within the boundary of our 
approved permit area at Kingsville Dome. In the first quarter of 2000 the District Court of Travis County, Texas ruled that the Texas Natural 
Resource Conservation Commission's decision to approve our third production area without granting a hearing to certain intervenors would 
require further review by that regulatory agency. That review is pending.  

Vasquez Litigation  

On December 4, 2001, we commenced an action in the 229/th/ Judicial District Court in Duvall County, Texas against the lessors for the 
Vasquez property to declare that our leases remain in full force and effect. The lease term expired in February 2000. The leases contain clauses 
that permit the extension of the term of the leases if we are engaged in operations designed to establish production. In addition the leases permit 
us to pay a per acre royalty to extend the term. We tendered payment of the required royalty in 2000, 2001 and 2002. The lessor returned all 
such payments without disclosing their reasons for rejecting the payment. We believe that we continue to hold our rights to the property under 
either the shut-in royalty or the continuing development clauses of the leases. We have been informed that the lessors granted a lease to a third 
party, Everest Exploration, that was contingent upon the termination of our leases. Everest has moved to intervene and has asserted a claim that 
our leases have expired. While we believe that our leases remain in full force and effect, we are unable to predict the outcome of this case.  

Texas Department of Health Bonding Issues  

On January 16, 2002 the Texas Department of Health requested that we post additional financial security in the amount of $3.5 million and 
threatened enforcement action if we failed to do so. We objected to the request. After consultation with the Department, we entered into an 
agreed order on March 8, 2002 that extended the deadline for posting the additional financial security until March 7, 2003 (subject to further 
extension) or until we commence mining operations.  

Other  

The Company is subject to periodic inspection by certain regulatory agencies for the purpose of determining compliance by the Company with 
the conditions of its licenses. In the ordinary course of business, minor violations may occur; however, these are not expected to cause material 
expenditures.  

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders  

In March 2001 the Company's stockholders approved an amendment to the Company's Restated Certificate of Incorporation to increase the 
authorized shares of Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share (the "Common Stock"), from 35,000,000 to 100,000,000. Stockholders also 
approved an amendment to the Company's 1995 Stock Incentive Plan (the "1995 Plan") to increase the number of shares of the Company's 
Common Stock eligible for issuance under the 1995 Plan from 1,250,000 shares to 4,000,000 shares.  
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS  

The factors identified below are important factors (but not necessarily all of the important factors) that could cause actual results to differ 
materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statement made by, or on behalf of, the Company. Where any such forward-looking 
statement includes a statement of the assumptions or bases underlying such forward-looking statement, we caution that, while we believe such 
assumptions or bases to be reasonable and make them in good faith, assumed facts or bases almost always vary from actual results, and the 
differences between assumed facts or bases and actual results can be material, depending upon the circumstances. Where, in any forward-
looking statement, the Company, or its management, expresses an expectation or belief as to the future results, such expectation or belief is 
expressed in good faith and believed to have a reasonable basis, but there can be no assurance that the statement of expectation or belief will 
result, or be achieved or accomplished. Taking into account the foregoing, the following are identified as important risk factors that could cause 
actual results to differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statement made by, or on behalf of, the Company.  

At current prices we are unable to produce uranium at a profit. We have had operating losses in each of 1999, 2000 and 2001 and expect to 
have no revenues or operating income in 2002.  

We cannot produce uranium at a profit until we can sell uranium for at least $12 per pound. The spot price of uranium was $9.90 per pound on 
March 18, 2002. We incurred losses of $3.8 million in 2001, $3.2 million in 2000 and $39.9 million in 1999. Because of depressed uranium 
prices, we shut-in and placed on stand-by our two South Texas facilities in the first quarter of 1999.  

We are able to continue in business only because of equity infusions from private investors and access to collateral securing our reclamation 
bonds.  

Without additional equity infusions we will be unable to continue in business. In August 2000 and April 2001 we raised $2.835 million cash by 
selling our common stock. In October 2000 we finalized the Restoration Agreement with Texas regulatory authorities and our bonding 
company that provided us access during 2001 to $2.2 million of cash pledged to secure restoration bonds. See "OUR BUSINESS - Reclamation 
and Restoration Costs and Bonding Requirements" for a discussion of the Restoration Agreement. A Second Restoration Agreement was 
entered into in January 2002 covering January through April 2002. This agreement provides us access to approximately $600,000 during this 
four month period to continue to conduct restoration activities. As a result of completing the Second Restoration Agreement, we believe that 
we have the cash to remain in business until mid 2002. Additional funds will be required in order for us to continue in business after that date.  

Even if the price of uranium increases and the demand for new production increases, there can be no assurance that we can survive long enough 
to participate in these changes or that we will have access to the capital necessary to bring new production on line.  

If we are unable to access additional capital for restoration activities and working capital purposes we will have to file for bankruptcy 
protection.  

We need access to additional funding in order to fund our restoration and working capital needs in 2002. If we do not have access to such funds 
we will need to file for bankruptcy protection.  
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We must prevail in our action to resolve our ownership of the Vasquez leases or we would lose the right to mine our lowest cost production.  

If we are unsuccessful in our action to declare the validity of the leases for the Vasquez property, we would lose our ability to start mining at 
our property with the lowest cost of production. See "LEGAL PROCEEDINGS."  

We must have access to about $3 million in order to commence mining our Vasquez property.  

If we cannot raise another $3 million we will be unable in order to construct the plant, drill injection and production wells and establish the 
necessary cash collateral for a bond at our Vasquez property. We will need to raise these funds from sources not yet identified. If we cannot 
raise these funds we will be unable to produce uranium even if the price increases to a level that we can produce and sell uranium at a profit.  

More stringent federal and state regulations could adversely affect our business.  

If we are unable to obtain or maintain permits or water rights for development of our properties or otherwise fail to adequately manage future 
environmental issues, our operations could be materially and adversely affected. We have expended significant resources, both financial and 
managerial, to comply with environmental protection laws, regulations and permitting requirements and we anticipate that we will be required 
to continue to do so in the future. Although we believe our properties comply in all material respects with all relevant permits, licenses and 
regulations pertaining to worker health and safety as well as those pertaining to the environment, the historical trend toward stricter 
environmental regulation may continue.  

The volatility of uranium prices makes our business uncertain.  

The volatility of uranium prices makes long-range planning uncertain and raising capital difficult. The price of uranium is affected by 
numerous factors beyond our control, including the demand for nuclear power, political and economic conditions, and legislation and 
production and costs of production of our competitors. Imports of uranium, including imports of uranium from the former Soviet Union, have 
resulted in significant downward pressure on uranium prices.  

We will be unable to obtain financing for the Vasquez property unless we can obtain a long-term contract to supply uranium at not less than 
$12 per pound.  

We do not have any scheduled uranium deliveries under contract for 2002 or beyond. We must secure profitable uranium sales contracts to 
secure the financing to resume production at our properties or we will be forced to go out of business.  

The only market for uranium is nuclear power plants, and there are only a few customers.  

We are dependent on a small number of electric utilities that buy uranium for nuclear power plants.  

13  



The price of alternative energy sources affects the demand for and price of uranium.  

Lower prices of oil, gas, coal and hydro-electricity and the possibility of developing other low cost sources for energy, have made and could 
continue to make nuclear power a less attractive fuel to generate electricity, thus resulting in lower demand for uranium. Maintaining the 
demand for uranium at current levels and future growth in demand will depend upon acceptance of nuclear technology as a means of generating 
electricity.  

Public acceptance of nuclear energy is uncertain.  

Lack of public acceptance of nuclear technology would adversely affect the demand for nuclear power and increase the regulation of the 
nuclear power industry.  

Because we have limited capital, inherent mining risks pose a significant threat to us.  

Because we are small with limited capital, we are unable to withstand significant losses that can result from inherent risks associated with 
mining, including environmental hazards, industrial accidents, flooding, interruptions due to weather conditions and other acts of nature. Such 
risks could result in damage to or destruction of our wellfield infrastructure and production facilities, as well as to adjacent properties, personal 
injury, environmental damage and processing and production delays, causing monetary losses and possible legal liability.  

Our inability to obtain insurance would threaten our ability to continue in business.  

If we were to be unable to obtain liability, property damage and other insurance at acceptable premiums, we would be unable to continue in 
business.  

Our inability to obtain bonding would threaten our ability to continue in business.  

If we are unable to comply with bonding requirements we would be unable to continue in business. As of December 31, 2001 we have 
estimated that our future restoration, decommissioning, decontamination and reclamation costs are about $ 4.7 million. To secure this 
obligation, we have posted surety bonds totaling approximately $4.2 million at December 31, 2001, of which $1.4 million was collateralized by 
cash on that date. Before we can commence operations we must post an additional $3.5 million in bonds for such costs with the state of Texas, 
and we have no commitment from our bonding company to post such a bond without 100% cash collateral. See "LEGAL PROCEEDINGS."  

In addition, we anticipate that our future surety requirements will increase significantly when future development and production occurs at our 
sites in Texas and New Mexico. The amount of the surety for each producing property is subject to annual review and revision by regulators.  

If we cannot add additional reserves to replace production in the future, we would not be able to remain in business.  

Our future uranium production, cash flow and income are dependent upon our ability to mine our current properties and acquire and develop 
additional reserves. Reserves at our producing sites were depleted in 1999, although there is the potential for developing additional wellfields at 
Kingsville Dome. There can be no assurance that our properties will be placed into production or that we will be able to continue to find and 
develop or acquire additional reserves.  
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Competition from better capitalized companies impacts prices and out ability to acquire properties, capital and personnel.  

The amount of uranium produced by competitors or imported into the United States has a material impact on uranium prices. There is global 
competition for uranium properties, capital, customers and the employment and retention or qualified personnel. In the production and 
marketing of uranium there are about 15 major producing entities, some of which are government controlled and all of which are significantly 
larger and better capitalized than we are. We also compete with uranium recovered from the de-enrichment of highly enriched uranium 
obtained from the dismantlement of United States and Russian nuclear weapons and imports to the United States of uranium from the former 
Soviet Union.  
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GLOSSARY OF CERTAIN URANIUM INDUSTRY TERMS  

claim                                   A claim is a tract of land, the right to  
                                        mine of whi ch is held under the federal 
                                        General Min ing Law of 1872 and 
                                        applicable local laws. 
 
concentrates                            A product f rom a uranium mining and 
                                        milling fac ility, which is commonly 
                                        referred to  as uranium concentrate or 
                                        U\\3\\O\\8\ \. 
 
conversion                              A process w hereby uranium concentrates 
                                        are convert ed into forms suitable for 
                                        use as fuel  in commercial nuclear 
                                        reactors. 
 
cut-off grade                           Cut-off gra de is determined by the 
                                        following f ormula parameters: estimates 
                                        over the re levant period of mining 
                                        costs, ore treatment costs, general and 
                                        administrat ive costs, refining costs, 
                                        royalty exp enses, process and refining 
                                        recovery ra tes and uranium prices. 
 
gross acres                             Total acres  under which we have mineral 
                                        rights and can mine for uranium. 
 
Indian Country                          A term deri ved from jurisdictional 
                                        determinati ons in criminal law 
                                        enforcement  proceedings under 18 U.S.C. 
                                        (S) 1151 an d understood to encompass 
                                        territory s ituated within Indian 
                                        reservation s, land owned by Indian 
                                        allottees a nd land within a dependent 
                                        Indian comm unity. 
 
lixiviant                               When used i n connection with uranium in 
                                        situ leach mining, a solution that is 
                                        pumped into  a permeable uranium ore body  
                                        to dissolve  uranium in order that a 
                                        uranium sol ution can be pumped from 
                                        production wells. 
 
mineralized material                    A mineraliz ed body which has been 
                                        delineated by appropriately spaced 
                                        drilling an d/or underground sampling to 
                                        support a s ufficient tonnage and 
                                        average. Su ch a deposit does not qualify  
                                        as a reserv e, until a comprehensive 
                                        evaluation based upon unit cost, grade, 
                                        recoveries,  and other material factors 
                                        conclude le gal and economic feasibility.  
 
net acres                               Actual acre s under lease which may 
                                        differ from  gross acres when fractional 
                                        mineral int erests are not leased. 
 
ore                                     Naturally o ccurring material from which 
                                        a mineral o r minerals of economic value 
                                        can be extr acted at a reasonable profit.  
 
over feeding                            Operating e nrichment plants in a manner 
                                        that reduce s plant operating costs but 
                                        increases t he amount of uranium required  
                                        to produce a given quantity of enriched 
                                        uranium. 
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probable reserves                       Reserves fo r which quantity and grade 
                                        and/or qual ity are computed from 
                                        information  similar to that used for 
                                        proven (mea sured) reserves, but the 
                                        sites for i nspection, sampling, and 
                                        measurement  are farther apart or are 
                                        otherwise l ess adequately spaced. The 
                                        degree of a ssurance, although lower than  
                                        that for pr oven (measured) reserves, is 
                                        high enough  to assume continuity between  
                                        points of o bservation. 
 
proven reserves                         Reserves fo r which (a) quantity is 
                                        computed fr om dimensions revealed in 
                                        outcrops, t renches, workings or drill 
                                        holes; grad e and/or quality are computed  
                                        from the re sults of detailed sampling 
                                        and (b) the  sites for inspection, 
                                        sampling an d measurement are spaced so 
                                        closely and  the geologic character is so  
                                        well define d that size, shape, depth and  
                                        mineral con tent of reserves are 
                                        well-establ ished. 
 
reclamation                             Reclamation  involves the returning of 
                                        the surface  area of the mining and 
                                        wellfield o perating areas to a condition  
                                        similar to pre-mining. 
 
recoverable reserves                    Reserves th at are either proven or 
                                        probable, a re physically minable, and 
                                        can be prof itably recovered under 
                                        conditions specified at the time of the 
                                        appraisal, based on a positive 
                                        feasibility  study. The calculation of 
                                        minable res erves is adjusted for 
                                        potential m ining recovery and dilution. 
 
reserve                                 That part o f a mineral deposit which 
                                        could be ec onomically and legally 
                                        extracted o r produced at the time of the  
                                        reserve det ermination. 
 
restoration                             Restoration  involves returning an 
                                        aquifer to a condition consistent with 
                                        our pre-min ing use and removing 
                                        evidences o f surface disturbance. The 
                                        restoration  of wellfield can be 
                                        accomplishe d by flushing the ore zone 
                                        with native  ground water and/or using 
                                        reverse osm osis to remove ions to 
                                        provide cle an water for reinjection to 
                                        flush the o re zone. 
 
resources                               A resource is a concentration of 
                                        naturally o ccurring minerals in such a 
                                        form that e conomic extraction is 
                                        potentially  feasible. 
 
roll front                              The configu ration of sedimentary uranium  
                                        ore bodies as they appear within the 
                                        host sand. A term that depicts an 
                                        elongate ur anium ore mass that is "C" 
                                        shaped. 
 
shut-in royalty                         A lease cla use permitting the extension 
                                        of a lease not held by production by 
                                        payment of a per acre royalty. 
 
slurry                                  Fine partic les of uranium concentrated 
                                        and suspend ed in water. 
 
spot price                              The price a t which uranium may be 
                                        purchased f or delivery within one year. 
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surety obligations                      A bond, let ter of credit, or financial 
                                        guarantee p osted by a party in favor of 
                                        a beneficia ry to ensure the performance 
                                        of its or a nother party's obligations, 
                                        e.g., recla mation bonds, workers' 
                                        compensatio n bond, or guarantees of debt  
                                        instruments . 
 
tailings                                Waste mater ial from a mineral processing  
                                        mill after the metals and minerals of a 
                                        commercial nature have been extracted; 
                                        or that por tion of the ore which remains  
                                        after the v aluable minerals have been 
                                        extracted. 
 
Trade Tech                              A Denver-ba sed publisher of information 
                                        for the nuc lear fuel industry; the 
                                        successor t o the information services 
                                        business of  Nuexco. 
 
uranium or uranium concentrates         U\\3\\O\\8\ \, or triuranium octoxide. 
 
U\\3\\O\\8\\                            Triuranium octoxide equivalent contained  
                                        in uranium concentrates, referred to as 
                                        uranium con centrate. 
 
waste                                   Barren rock  in a mine, or uranium in a 
                                        rock format ion that is too low in grade 
                                        to be mined  and milled at a profit. 



PART II  

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters  

Before March 24, 1999 our Common Stock was traded on NASDAQ National Market under the trading symbol URIX. On March 23, 1999, 
our common stock was delisted from the NASDAQ National Market. From March 24, 1999 through November 13, 2000 our stock was quoted 
on the Over the Counter Bulletin Board. On November 14, 2000 we became ineligible for trading on the OTCBB and began trading on the Pink 
Sheets. Commencing August 22, 2001 we again were quoted on the OTCBB.  

The following table sets forth the high and low sales prices for the Common Stock as reported on the applicable markets for the periods 
indicated:  

 

The high and low closing prices for the common stock for the period January 1, 2001 to December 31, 2001, was $0.30 and $0.035 
respectively.  

As of December 31, 2001, we had 48,992,278 shares of Common Stock outstanding. On that date there were 165 holders of record and about 
2,200 beneficial owners.  

We have never paid any cash or other dividends on our Common Stock, and we do not anticipate paying dividends for the foreseeable future.  

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities  

In 1999, we issued 288,263 shares of common stock to certain officers and directors of the Company in connection with the Uranium 
Resources, Inc. 1999 Deferred Compensation Plan in a transaction not involving a public offering under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 
1933, as amended, and Regulation D thereunder.  

In August 2000 and January 2001 we issued 720,000 and 189,412 shares of Common Stock respectively to our regulatory counsel settling an 
outstanding indebtedness of $250,000 in a transaction not involving a public offering under  
Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Rule 506 of Regulation D thereunder.  

In 2000, we issued 67,598 shares of common stock to certain directors of the Company in connection with the 1999 Deferred Compensation 
Plan in satisfaction of $25,350 of compensation deferred by those  
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                                   Common Stock 
                                   ------------ 
Fiscal Quarter Ending             High        Low 
---------------------             ----        --- 
 
December 31, 2001               $ 0.15      $ 0.08 
September 30, 2001                0.22        0.15 
June 30, 2001                     0.26        0.075  
March 31, 2001                    0.30        0.035  
December 31, 2000                 1/8         2/64 
September 30, 2000                9/64        5/64 
June 30, 2000                     3/16        3/32 
March 31, 2000                   14/32        7/64 
December 31, 1999                13/64        7/64 
September 30, 1999                9/32        5/32 
June 30, 1999                    27/64        5/32 
March 31, 1999                    1/2         1/8 



individuals, in a transaction not involving a public offering under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Rule 506 of 
Regulation D thereunder.  

In February 2000 the Company issued 2,111,478 shares of common stock to two institutions that were accredited investors in a transaction not 
involving a public offering under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Regulation D thereunder in exchange for the 
cancellation of indebtedness of $6 million plus accrued interest.  

In August 2000, we sold 7.5 million shares of Common Stock at $0.10 per share (an aggregate of $750,000) in a transaction not involving a 
public offering under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Regulation D thereunder to a limited number of accredited 
investors. The investors were also issued five-year warrants to purchase an aggregate of 5,625,000 shares of Common Stock with an initial 
exercise price of $0.20 per share (currently $0.14 per share).  

In April 2001, we sold 26,062,500 shares of common stock at $0.08 per share (an aggregate of $2,085,000) in a transaction not involving a 
public offering under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Rule 506 of Regulation D thereunder to a limited number of 
accredited investors.  

As of March 22, 2002, the Company had 48,992,278 shares of Common Stock outstanding held of record by 165 persons.  

Dividends  

The Company did not declare or pay any cash or other dividends on its Common Stock during the years ending December 31, 2001, 2000 or 
1999. The Company does not anticipate paying dividends for the foreseeable future.  

Item 6. Management's Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation  

Impact of Uranium Price Declines  

Excess uranium inventory has had a detrimental effect on uranium prices. This is expected to continue for the next several years. The market 
price of uranium is currently below our cost to produce uranium and is anticipated to remain so through at least 2002.  

In the first quarter of 1999 we shut-in and placed on stand-by both of our producing properties. Nominal production from these sites continued 
through July 1999 until their incremental production costs exceeded the cost of purchasing uranium in the open market.  

To remain solvent, in 1999 and the first quarter of 2000 we monetized all of our remaining uranium sales contracts by accelerating future 
contracted deliveries and/or terminating contracts in return for receipt of proceeds equal to the net present value of the projected future net 
proceeds under the remainder of the contract. The proceeds generated from the monetization of our sales contracts were used for working 
capital purposes. Since the first quarter of 2000 we have had no source of revenue.  

Capital Resources and Liquidity  

In February 2000, we converted $6 million of debt and accrued interest of $334,438 into 2,111,478 shares of our Common Stock. This 
conversion eliminated all obligations under the note.  

In October 2000 we signed the Restoration Agreement that provided us access to $2.2 million in cash during 2001 to perform restoration at our 
Kingsville Dome and Rosita mine sites in South Texas. The entire $2.2 million has been released to us. See "OUR BUSINESS - Reclamation 
and Restoration Costs and Bonding Requirements" for a discussion of the Restoration Agreement. A Second Restoration Agreement was 
entered into in January 2002 covering January through April 2002. This agreement provides us access to approximately $600,000 during this 
four month period to continue to conduct  
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restoration activities. As a result of completing the Second Restoration Agreement, we believe that we have the cash to remain in business until 
mid 2002. Additional funds will be required in order for us to continue in business after that date.  

We will require additional capital resources to fund the development of our undeveloped properties. There is no assurance we will be 
successful in raising such capital or that uranium prices will recover to levels which would enable us to operate profitably.  

In July 1999, we extended our revolving credit facility through July 2000. At March 31, 2000, we had monetized all of our uranium sales 
contracts and sold all our uranium inventories. Without these underlying assets, we were unable to draw on the credit facility and terminated 
the credit facility effective April 30, 2000. There were no fees or penalties associated with the early termination of this credit facility.  

In August 2000 and April 2001 we completed two private placements raising an aggregate of $750,000 and $2,085,000, respectively through 
the issuance of 7,500,000 and 26,062,500 shares of common stock respectively, and warrants expiring in August 2005 to purchase an additional 
5,625,000 shares of Common Stock. As adjusted for the April offering, the exercise price of the warrants is $0.14 per share. The funds will be 
used to fund our non-restoration overhead costs.  

The shares issued in the private placements represented approximately 69% of our outstanding Common Stock. The completion of the private 
placement resulted in a significant dilution of our current stockholders' equity.  

At December 31, 2001, our cash and cash equivalents were $549,000, compared to $213,000 at year end 2000. We had negative operating cash 
flow of $2,713,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001, compared to negative $1,220,000 in 2000. Our net working capital at December 31, 
2001 was $232,000 compared to negative $161,000 at December 31, 2000.  

In order to maintain the rights to our uranium properties in South Texas and New Mexico we are required to maintain certain lease obligations 
through land payments. Additionally, in the State of Texas we are required to maintain certain licenses which require annual fees. We expect 
such payments to total approximately $450,000 in 2002.  

We will require additional capital to fund our working capital needs, land holding, licensing, restoration activities and the development of our 
undeveloped properties. There is no assurance we will be successful in raising such capital or that uranium prices will recover to levels which 
would enable us to operate profitably. These factors, raise substantial doubt concerning our ability to continue as a going concern.  

Comparison of Results of Operations  

Year Ended December 31, 2001 Compared to 2000  

Our primary operations in 2001 were the ongoing groundwater restoration activities at our Kingsville Dome and Rosita mine sites. These full-
scale operations began in the third quarter of 2000 and continued through 2001 as a result of the completion of the Restoration Agreement in 
the third quarter of 2000. Prior to the completion of the Restoration Agreement we were conducting restoration activities on a smaller scale and 
maintaining each production site in a stand-by mode. While in stand-by costs related to each site are treated as ongoing operating expenses.  

We had no uranium sales in 2001 compared to the sale of 98,000 pounds in 2000, resulting in the decrease in revenues from $937,000 in 2000 
to zero in 2001. The 98,000 pounds sold in 2000 consisted of 85,000 purchased pounds and 13,000 produced pounds. The year ended 2000 also 
had other uranium revenues of $145,000 related to the monetization of a long-term uranium sales contract. No such other uranium revenues 
were generated in 2001.  
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The cost of uranium purchases in 2000 was $9.41 per pound. There were no uranium purchases in 2001. Operating expenses decreased to 
$56,000 in 2001 from $734,000 in 2000 as a result of full scale restoration activities being conducted for the entire year in 2001 compared to 
the second half of 2000.  

Restoration and reclamation costs have been accrued for at $0.95 per-pound as part of production costs, representing the estimated cost of 
future restoration activities. In 2001, the restoration activities that were conducted provided information that was used to update our overall 
restoration plan at each location. As a result of a revised engineering study it was determined that an adjustment to the restoration accrual was 
required. An increase of such accrual of $2,072,000 was recorded in 2001. The restoration charge in 2000 of $12,000 resulted from the sale of 
the Company's remaining produced inventory.  

Depreciation and depletion includes an amount for each pound produced and an amount based on straight line depreciation. The amount in 
2000 was $194,000 and consisted primarily of straight line depreciation while on stand-by for the first half of the year. The amount in 2001 
decreased significantly as a result of the change to restoration activity for the full year.  

We incurred charges in 2001 and 2000 from the writedown of our uranium properties of $475,000 and $1,415,000 respectively. These charges 
resulted from our determination that an impairment in the value of our long-term assets had occurred during each respective year.  

Royalties in 2000 of $17,000 were from the sale of produced uranium during the year. No such sales and related royalties occurred in 2001.  

Corporate general and administrative expenses declined to $1,192,000 in 2001 from $1,359,000 in 2000 as a result of lower salaries, reduced 
staff and other cost reductions.  

Interest and other income totaled $100,000 in 2001 compared to $365,000 in 2000. This reduction resulted primarily from a gain on the sale of 
property in South Texas ($112,000) in 2000 and a reduction in interest from the funds held as collateral for the Company's bond obligations.  

Item 7. Financial Statements  

The information called for by this item appears on pages F-1 through F-22 of this Annual Report on Form 10-KSB.  

Item 8. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure  

In February 2001 our Board of Directors and Audit Committee approved the replacement of our accounting firm, Arthur Andersen LLP, with 
Hein + Associates LLP to perform the audit of our financial statements for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 2000. The Andersen audit 
reports for 1998 and 1997 contained a modified opinion regarding our ability to continue as a going concern.  

During 1997 and 1998 and subsequent interim periods preceding this change, there had been no disagreements with Andersen on any matter of 
accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosures, or auditing scope or procedure, which, if not resolved to the satisfaction of 
Andersen, would have caused them to make reference to the subject matter of such disagreements in connection with issuing their reports. 
Also, no reportable events, within the meaning of Item 304(a)(1)(v) of Regulation S-K, has occurred during the two most recently completed 
years and subsequent interim periods, preceding this change. We provided Andersen with these disclosures, and Andersen has furnished us 
with a letter, addressed to the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Commission"), stating that they agree with the statements contained 
herein.  
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PART III  

Item 9. Directors, Executive Officers, Promoters and Control Persons: Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act  

Directors  

The Board of Directors consists of the four individuals listed below who hold office until the next annual meeting of stockholders and until 
their successors are elected and qualified. Directors are elected by plurality vote.  

 

Paul K. Willmott has served as a director since August 1994, as President since February 1995 and as Chairman of the Board and Chief 
Executive Officer since July 31, 1995. Mr. Willmott served as our Chief Financial Officer from April 12, 1995 to September 25, 1995. Mr. 
Willmott retired from Union Carbide Corporation ("Union Carbide") where he was involved for 25 years in the finance and operation of Union 
Carbide's world-wide mining and metals business. Most recently, Mr. Willmott was President of UMETCO Minerals Corporation, a wholly 
owned subsidiary of Union Carbide, from 1987 to 1991, where he was responsible for Union Carbide's uranium and vanadium businesses. 
From January 1993 until February 1995, Mr. Willmott was engaged by the Concord Mining Unit as a senior vice president where he was 
primarily involved in the acquisition of UMETCO Minerals Corporation's uranium and vanadium operating assets. Mr. Willmott graduated 
from Michigan Technological University with a Bachelor of Science degree in Mining in 1964 and a Bachelor of Science Degree in 
Engineering Administration in 1967. He has been an active member of the American Institute of Mining Engineers, the Canadian Institute of 
Mining Engineers and a number of state professional organizations.  

Leland O. Erdahl has served as a director since July 11, 1994. From 1986 to 1991, Mr. Erdahl served as President and Chief Executive Officer 
for Stolar, Inc., a high-tech company involved in the radio wave imaging of geologic media and underground radio transmission for voice and 
data. He was President and CEO of Albuquerque Uranium Corporation, a uranium mining company, from 1987 to 1991 and served as Vice 
President of AMAX Gold in 1997 and 1998. From January 2001 to September 14, 2001 Mr. Erdahl served as President of Nord Pacific 
Limited, a mining company with gold and copper interests in Australia and Papau, New Guinea. He is a Certified Public Accountant and is a 
graduate from the College of Santa Fe. He is currently a director of Hecla Mining Company and Canyon Resources Corporation (a mining 
company whose primary business is the discovery and production of precious metals). Mr. Erdahl also serves on the compensation committee 
of Hecla Mining Company and Canyon Resources Corporation.  

George R. Ireland has served as a director since May 25, 1995. Mr. Ireland is a General Partner in Ring Partners, LLC, a private investment 
partnership. From February 1991 to February 2000, Mr. Ireland was a financial analyst for and a partner in Knott Partners L.P., a private 
investment partnership.  
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       Name               Age               Positio ns and Offices 
       ----               --- 
 
 Paul K. Willmott         62          Chairman, Chi ef Executive Officer, 
                                            Preside nt and Director 
 
 Leland O. Erdahl         73       Director and Cha irman of Audit Committee  
 
George R. Ireland         45        Director and Me mber of Audit Committee 
 
Rudolf J. Mueller         64        Director and Me mber of Audit Committee 



Mr. Ireland specialized in investing in securities of natural resource and other basic industrial companies, both domestically and abroad. From 
1987 to 1991, he was a Vice President of Fulcrum Management, Inc., (a natural resource venture capital management company) which was the 
manager of the VenturesTrident Limited Partnerships, (venture capital funds dedicated to investing in the mining industry), and Senior Vice 
President and Chief Financial Officer of MinVen Gold Corporation, a company in which the VenturesTrident funds had a significant 
investment. Mr. Ireland graduated from the University of Michigan with degrees in Geology and Resource Economics. He also attended the 
Graduate School of Business Administration of New York University. Mr. Ireland is a director of Merrill & Ring, Inc., a private land and 
timber holding company in the state of Washington. Mr. Ireland acted as a consultant to Ryback Management Corporation (a registered 
investment adviser) and performed due diligence on us in connection with Ryback's loan of $6 million to us on behalf of members of the 
Lindner Group in 1995. Mr. Ireland is not otherwise affiliated with the Lindner Group or Ryback.  

Rudolf J. Mueller has served as a director since June 19, 2001. Mr. Mueller is a Certified Financial Analyst and has been involved in the 
investment advisory business since 1964 and currently serves as President and Director of The Winchester Group a money management and 
institutional research firm based in New York City. For each of the past five years Mr. Mueller has been an Officer in and has served as a 
Director of The Winchester Group. Mr. Mueller received a BBA from City College of New York in 1963 and his MBA from New York 
University in 1965.  

Arrangements Regarding Election of Directors  

Before February 2000 the Lindner Group was entitled to nominate two directors. They did so and two directors were elected to the Board 
starting in 1995, one of whom, George R. Ireland, continues to serve on the Board. The other director nominated by the Lindner Group 
resigned in July 1998 and the Lindner Group did not designate a replacement.  

Other Executive Officers  

The executive officers serve at the discretion of the Board of Directors and are subject to annual appointment by the Board at its first meeting 
following the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders. The officers hold office until their successors are appointed by the Board of Directors. All 
officers are employed on a full-time basis. There is no family relationship between any director and executive officer.  

The following table sets forth certain information concerning executive officers that are not also directors:  

 

The following sets forth certain information concerning the business experience of the foregoing executive officers during the past five years.  

Richard A. Van Horn joined us in March 1997 and assumed the position of Senior Vice President of Operations on April 1, 1997. Previously, 
he spent three years with Energy Fuels Nuclear, Inc. as General Manager - Colorado Plateau Operations with responsibility for the daily 
management of and planning for Energy Fuels Nuclear, Inc. mining activities on the Colorado Plateau. Before his work at  
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       Name                Age                       Positions and Offices 
       ----                --- 
Richard A. Van Horn         55                Senio r Vice President - Operations 
 
 Thomas H. Ehrlich          42        Vice Presiden t, Chief Financial Officer, Secretary  
                                                        and Treasurer 
 
  Mark S. Pelizza           49        Vice Presiden t - Health, Safety and Environmental 
                                        Affairs and  President - Hydro Resources, Inc. 



Energy Fuels Nuclear, Inc., Mr. Van Horn spent eighteen years with Union Carbide Corporation where he was involved with the finance and 
operation of that company's worldwide mining and metals business. From 1990 to 1994, Mr. Van Horn was Director of Operations of 
UMETCO Minerals Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of Union Carbide Corporation, responsible for all operating aspects of 
UMETCO's uranium and vanadium business on the Colorado Plateau prior to its sale to Energy Fuels Nuclear, Inc. Mr. Van Horn graduated 
from the Colorado School of Mines with a Engineer of Mines degree in mining in 1973.  

Thomas H. Ehrlich, a certified public accountant, rejoined us in September 1995 as Vice President and Chief Financial Officer and was 
appointed Secretary and Treasurer in December 1995. Immediately before that, Mr. Ehrlich spent nine months as a Division Controller with 
Affiliated Computer Services, Inc., an information technology services provider in Dallas, Texas. Mr. Ehrlich originally joined us in November 
1987 as Controller-Public Reporting and was promoted to Controller and Chief Accounting Officer in February 1990. In February 1993, Mr. 
Ehrlich assumed the additional duties of Vice President and Secretary . Before joining us, he spent four years with Deloitte Haskins & Sells and 
worked primarily with clients that were publicly held companies. Prior to his work at Deloitte Haskins & Sells, he spent three years in various 
accounting duties at Enserch Exploration, Inc., an oil and gas company in Dallas, Texas. Mr. Ehrlich received his B.S. B.A. degree in 
Accounting from Bryant College in 1981.  

Mark S. Pelizza has served as our Environmental Manager since 1980, and as such, he has been responsible for all environmental regulatory 
activities. In February 1996, he was appointed Vice President - Health, Safety and Environmental Affairs . In November 1999, he was 
appointed President and a Director of Hydro Resources, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary . Before joining us, he was employed for two years by 
Union Carbide as an Environmental Planning Engineer at Union Carbide's Palangana solution mining plant in South Texas. Mr. Pelizza 
received a M.S. degree in Engineering Geology from Colorado School of Mines in 1978 and a B.S. degree in Geology from Fort Lewis College 
in 1974.  

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance  

Directors and officers of the Company have inadvertently failed to file Forms 4s and 5s with respect to certain acquisitions of shares of the 
Company's Common Stock and the receipt of certain options to acquire such shares during 2000 and 2001.  

Mr. Mueller acquired 1.5 million shares and warrants to acquire 1,125,000 shares in August 2000 and 1,250,000 shares in April 2001, which 
should have been reported on Form 4. In June 2001 Mr. Mueller received options to acquire 20,000 shares and 100,000 shares, which should 
have been reported on Form 5.  

In September 2000 and February 2001 Mr. Willmott received options to acquire 750,000 shares and 291,300 shares respectively, which should 
have been reported on Form 5.  

Mr. Erdahl received an option to acquire 100,000 shares in June 2001, which should have been reported on Form 5.  

Mr. Ireland received an option to acquire 100,000 shares in June 2001, which should have been reported on Form 5.  

In September 2000 and February 2001 Mr. Ehrlich received options to acquire 500,000 shares and 52,500 shares, respectively, which should 
have been reported on Form 5.  

In September 2000 and February 2001 Mr. Pelizza received options to acquire 500,000 shares and 32,400 shares, respectively, which should 
have been reported on Form 5.  
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In September 2000 and February 2001 Mr. Van Horn received options to acquire 500,000 shares and 64,000 shares respectively, which should 
have been reported on Form 5.  

Under the Company's 2000 and 2001 Deferred Compensation Plan, the officers and directors of the Company have deferred a total of $444,300 
through December 31, 2001, which they have the option of converting into 2,221,652 shares of the Company's Common Stock at $0.20 per 
share on or before January 11, 2006. This should have been reported on Form 5.  

Each of the directors and officers is in the process of completing the appropriate Form 5 to report the foregoing transactions.  
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Item 10. Executive Compensation  

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to annual and long-term compensation for services in all capacities for the years 
ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 paid to our Chief Executive Officer and certain other executive officers.  

 

/1/ Represents amount paid for out-of-pocket medical and dental expenses under the Company's Supplemental Health Care Plan.  

/2/ Represents contributions made by the Company under the Company's 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan (see "401(k) Profit Sharing Plan" below) 
and compensation in shares of the Company's Common Stock under the 1999 Deferred Compensation Plan (See "Deferred Compensation 
Plans" below). The shares issued under the 1999 Deferred Compensation Plan were valued at $0.375 per share, which exceeded the fair market 
value of such shares when issued.  

/3/ Salary for 2001, 2000 and 1999 includes $90,000, $90,000 and $99,904, respectively which was deferred under the 2000-2001 Deferred 
Compensation Plan.  

/4/ Salary for 2001 and 2000 includes $20,800 that was deferred under the Company's 2000-2001 Deferred Compensation Plan.  

/5/ Salary for 2001, 2000 and 1999 includes $16,250, $17,140 and $6,163, respectively which was deferred under the Company's 2000-2001 
Deferred Compensation Plan and 1999 Deferred Compensation Plan.  
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                                                Sum mary Compensation Table 
 
=================================================== =================================================== =============  
                              Annual Compensation                                      Long-Term Compe nsation 
 
=================================================== =================================================== =============  
                                                                                   Securities 
                                                                  Other            Underlying        A ll Other 
  Name and Principal                  Salary      B onus    Annual Compensation/1/    Options      Comp ensation/2/ 
       Position            Year        ($)         ($)             ($)                 (#)              ($) 
=================================================== =================================================== =============  
Paul K. Willmott/3/        2001      $199,092       $0            $1,283             291,300           $ 1,440 
Chairman, President and    2000      $198,799       $0            $1,152             750,000           $ 1,788 
Chief Executive Officer    1999      $187,859       $0            $  942                  --           $ 9,818 
 
Richard A. Van Horn/4/     2001      $135,435       $0            $3,802              64,000           $ 1,616 
Senior Vice President -    2000      $134,982       $0            $3,189             500,000           $ 1,686 
Operations                 1999      $115,283       $0            $  863                  --           $11,036 
 
Mark S. Pelizza            2001      $105,340       $0            $4,584              32,400           $ 1,512 
Vice President -           2000      $104,924       $0            $5,636             500,000           $ 1,533 
Health, Safety and         1999      $ 95,384       $0            $7,456                  --           $ 6,166 
Environmental Affairs 
 
Thomas H. Ehrlich/5/       2001      $105,237       $0            $    0              52,200           $ 1,274 
Vice President and         2000      $105,237       $0            $  100             500,000           $ 1,358 
Chief Financial Officer    1999      $ 94,069       $0            $  200                  --           $ 7,309 
=================================================== =================================================== =============  



Supplemental Health Care Plan  

The Company has adopted a health care plan (the "Supplemental Plan") for the officers and certain of the employees who are also stockholders, 
which supplements the standard health care plan available to all eligible employees (the "Standard Plan"). The Supplemental Plan pays directly 
to the participant 80% of all out-of-pocket medical and dental expenses not covered under the Standard Plan, including deductibles and co-
insurance amounts. Additionally, the Supplemental Plan provides to each participant $100,000 of accidental death and dismemberment 
insurance protection and a world wide medical assistance benefit. Each participant in the Supplemental Plan may receive a maximum annual 
benefit of $100,000. The Company pays an annual premium under the Supplemental Plan equal to $250 per participant plus 10% of claims 
paid. There are currently four officers and employees covered by the Supplemental Plan.  

401(k) Profit Sharing Plan  

The Company maintains a defined contribution profit sharing plan for employees (the "401(k)") that is administered by a committee of trustees 
appointed by us. All Company employees are eligible to participate upon the completion of six months of employment, subject to minimum 
age requirements. Each year we makes a contribution to the 401(k) out of our current or accumulated net profits (as defined) in an amount 
determined by the Board of Directors but not exceeding 15% of the total compensation paid or accrued to participants during such fiscal year. 
Our contributions are allocated to participants in amounts equal to 25% (or a higher percentage, determined at our discretion) of the 
participants' contributions, up to 4% of each participant's gross pay. For the plan year ended July 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, we contributed 
amounts equal to 25% of the participant's contributions, up to 4% of gross pay. Participants become 20% vested in their Company contribution 
account for each year of service until full vesting occurs upon the completion of five years of service. Distributions are made upon retirement, 
death or disability in a lump sum or in installments.  

Employees' Stock Option Plans  

Under our 1995 Stock Incentive Plan (the "1995 Plan") incentive stock options and non-qualified options to purchase up to an aggregate of 4 
million shares of Common Stock may be granted. The Stock Option Committee of the Board of Directors administers the 1995 Plan and has 
the full authority, subject to the provisions of the 1995 Plan, to determine to whom and when to grant options and the number of shares of 
Common Stock covered by each grant. As of December 31, 2001, 3,064,295 shares are reserved for issuance upon exercise of outstanding 
options granted under the 1995 Plan, and 935,705 shares were reserved for issuance pursuant to options that may be granted in the future. No 
shares have been issued upon the exercise of options under the 1995 Plan.  

The Company also maintains an Employee's Stock Option Plan under which we may grant non-qualified options. As of December 31, 2001, 
264,637 shares are reserved for issuance under options outstanding under that plan.  

Deferred Compensation Plans  

Under our 1999 Deferred Compensation Plan (the "1999 Plan") executive officers and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries were 
permitted to defer until January 11, 2006 up to 100% of their 1999 salary. At the time of the deferral election, a participant could elect to 
receive payment of up to 100% of the deferred amount of salary in shares of our Common Stock. A total of $241,690 was deferred under the 
1999 Plan of which $133.450 was paid by issuing 355,861 shares of our Common Stock at $0.375 per share.  

The Company also has a 2000-2001 Deferred Compensation Plan (the "2000-2001 Plan"). Under that plan executive officers and directors were 
permitted to defer up to 100% of their 2000 and 2001 salary with payment thereof to be made on January 11, 2006. On or before that date, the 
participant may elect to receive the deferred amount in shares of our Common Stock valued at $0.20 per share. As of _December 31, 2001, a 
total of $336,090 has been deferred under that plan and no elections have yet been made to convert any such amounts into shares.  

28  



Option Grants in Last Fiscal Year  

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to options granted to the executive officers named in the Summary 
Compensation Table in the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001.  
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=================================================== =================================================== ============  
                                                                                           Potential R ealizable 
                                                                                              Value At  Assumed 
                                                                                          Annual Rates  of Stock 
                                                                                          Price Apprec iation for 
                                 Individual Grants                                             Option Term 
=================================================== =================================================== ============  
 
                                           Percent of 
                           Number of      Total Opt ions 
                          Securities       Granted to     Exercise of 
                          Underlying      Employees  in     Base Price 
Name                   Options Granted     Fiscal Y ear     ($/Share)    Expiration Date    5% ($)       10% ($) 
 
=================================================== =================================================== ============  
Paul K. Willmott           291,300            61.3%           $0.19         2/28/2011       $34,807      $88,209 
 
Richard A. Van Horn         64,000            13.5%           $0.19         2/28/2011       $ 7,647      $19,380 
 
Mark S. Pelizza             32,400             6.8%           $0.19         2/28/2011       $ 3,871      $ 9,811 
 
Thomas H. Ehrlich           52,500            11.0%           $0.19         2/28/2011       $ 6,273      $15,898 
 
=================================================== =================================================== ============  



Aggregated Stock Option Exercises in Last Fiscal Year and Fiscal Year End Option Values  

The following sets forth information with respect to each exercise of stock options during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001 and the 
year-end value of unexercised options held by each of the executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table.  

 

** Represents an option whose grant price is above the December 31, 2001 closing price on the Over the Counter Bulletin Board (the 
"OTCBB").  

/1/ Based on the closing price on the OTCBB on December 31, 2001 less the grant prices of $4.13, $8.38, $6.88, $9.75, $7.125, $2.9375, $0.20, 
$0.19, $4.25 and $5.88, respectively.  

/2/ Based on the closing price on the OTCBB on December 31, 2001 less the grant price of $5.50 $2.9375, $0.20 and $0.19 respectively.  

/3/ Based on the closing price on the OTCBB on December 31, 2001 less the grant price of $2.94, $9.75, $7.125 $2.9375, $0.20 and $0.19 
respectively.  

/4/ Based on the closing price on the OTCBB on December 31, 2001 less the grant price of $6.94, $9.75, $7.125 $2.9375, $0.20 and $0.19 
respectively.  
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=================================================== ===================================================  
                                                                   Number of 
                                                                  Securities            Value of 
                                 Shares                           Underlying           Unexercised 
                              Acquired on    Value Realized       Unexercised         In-The-Money 
              Name            Exercise (#)         ($)         Options at Fiscal    Options at Fiscal 
                                                                 Year End (#)         Year End ($) 
 
                                                                 Exercisable/         Exercisable/ 
                                                                 Unexercisable        Unexercisable 
=================================================== ===================================================  
Paul K. Willmott/1/              --                --             100,000/0                ** 
                                                                  100,000/0                ** 
                                                                   40,200/0                ** 
                                                                   37,670/0                ** 
                                                                   26,280/0                ** 
                                                                30,000/10,000              ** 
                                                               187,500/562,500             ** 
                                                                  0/291,300                ** 
                                                                  19,000/0                 ** 
                                                                   1,000/0 
Richard A. Van Horn/2/           --                --              55,000/0                ** 
                                                                 18,750/6,250              ** 
                                                               125,000/375,000             ** 
                                                                   0/64,000 
Mark S. Pelizza/3/               --                --              14,437/0                ** 
                                                                   9,360/0                 ** 
                                                                   7,700/0                 ** 
                                                                 6,750/2,250               ** 
                                                               125,000/375,000             ** 
                                                                   0/32,400 
Thomas H. Ehrlich/4/             --                --              35,000/0                ** 
                                                                   4,260/0                 ** 
                                                                   14,000/0                ** 
                                                                 9,000/3,000               ** 
                                                               125,000/375,000             ** 
                                                                   0/52,200 
=================================================== ===================================================  



Director Compensation  

Under our Directors' Stock Option Plan ("Directors' Plan"), each new non-employee director elected or appointed to the Board of Directors for 
the first time is granted an option to purchase 20,000 shares of Common and, upon re-election of a non-employee director at an annual meeting 
of our stockholders, such director is granted an option to purchase an additional 1,000 shares. As of December 31, 2001, a total of 91,000 
shares are reserved for issuance upon exercise of options granted under the Directors' Plan and 30,500 shares were reserved for issuance upon 
exercise of options that may be granted in the future under the Directors' Plan.  

Mr. Erdahl holds options covering 26,000 shares under the Directors' Plan. Mr. Ireland holds options covering 25,000 shares under the 
Directors' Plan. Mr. Willmott and Mr. Mueller hold options covering 20,000 shares under the Directors' Plan.  

In addition, Messrs. Ireland, Erdahl and Mueller each hold an option expiring on June 19, 2011 to purchase 100,000 shares of Common Stock 
at $0.22 per share. Those options were not granted under the Directors' Plan.  

Compensation for 2001 to the non-employee directors was earned at the rate of $3,000 per quarter plus $1,000 per meeting attended of the 
Board and committees of the Board. The directors deferred a total of $49,000 in 2001 under the 2000-2001 Plan, which represented all of their 
compensation for that year.  

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation  

In August 1994, we formed a Compensation Committee to determine the compensation of the executive officers and to set the guidelines for 
compensation for our employees. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001, the Compensation Committee was comprised of Leland O. 
Erdahl and George R. Ireland. No member of the Compensation Committee has been or was during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001, 
an officer or employee of any of our subsidiaries. In addition, no member of the Compensation Committee during the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2001 had any relationship requiring disclosure under the caption "Certain Relationships and Related Transactions." No executive 
officer serves or served on the compensation committee of another entity during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001 and no executive 
officer serves or served as a director of another entity who has or had an executive officer serving on the Compensation Committee.  

Compensation Agreements with Key Executives  

In June 1997 we entered into Compensation Agreements with each of the executive officers named in the compensation table that provide that 
in the event of a change in control, the Chief Executive Officer and other executive officers will have certain rights and benefits for a period of 
thirty-six and twenty-four months, respectively, following such change in control. The agreements specify that the executive will continue to 
receive compensation and benefits for the remainder of the applicable period if we terminate the executive or if the executive terminates his 
employment following the occurrence of certain actions without the executive's consent. However, we are not obligated to provide such rights 
and benefits to the executive if the executive was terminated for cause.  

31  



Item 11. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management  

The following tables set forth, as of February 28, 2002, information regarding persons known by us to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% 
of the outstanding shares of our Common Stock. Shown separately in the second table below is information regarding the beneficial ownership 
of our Common Stock by  
(i) each director, (ii) each of the executive officers, and (iii) all directors and executive officers as a group.  

Principal Stockholders  

 

/1/ Each person has sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares listed, unless otherwise indicated. Beneficial ownership 
includes shares over which the indicated beneficial owner exercises voting and/or investment power.  

/2/ The shares owned by each person, and the shares included in the total number of shares outstanding, have been adjusted, and the 
percentages owned have been computed, in accordance with Rule 13d-3(d)(1) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Shares subject to 
options or warrants currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days are deemed outstanding for computing the percentage ownership of the 
person holding such options or warrants, but are not deemed outstanding for computing the percentage ownership of any other person.  

/3/ Includes (i) 78,300 shares owned by members of Mr. Mueller's family in which Mr. Mueller shares voting and dispositive power, and (ii) 
1,125,000 shares obtainable at $0.14 per share pursuant to warrants that are exercisable through August 21, 2005.  

/4/ Includes 937,500 shares obtainable at $0.14 per share pursuant to warrants that are exercisable through August 21, 2005.  

/5/ Includes 618,750 shares obtainable at $0.14 per share pursuant to warrants that are exercisable through August 21, 2005.  

/6/ Includes 750,000 shares obtainable at $0.14 per share pursuant to warrants that are exercisable through August 21, 2005.  
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=================================================== ===========================================  
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner             Am ount and Nature of             Percent 
                                                Ben eficial Ownership/1/         of Class/2/ 
=================================================== ===========================================  
Rudolf J. Mueller                                    6,787,700/3/                  13.5% 
c/o The Winchester Group 
153 East 53/rd/ Street, Suite 5101 
New York, NY 10022 
 
Arnold Spellun                                       4,062,500/4/                   8.1% 
529 Fifth Avenue 
8/th/ Floor 
New York, NY 10017 
 
Robert M. Manning                                    3,987,350/5/                   8.0% 
119 Cooper Ave. 
Upper Montclair, NJ 07043 
 
William D. Witter                                    3,750,000                      7.7% 
153 East 53/rd/ Street 
New York, NY 10022 
 
Central Bank and Trust Co. Trustee of the John       3,500,000/6/                   7.0% 
C. Mull IRA 
P.O. Box 1366 
Hutchinson, KS 67504-1366 
 
=================================================== ===========================================  



Directors and Executive Officers  

 

/1/ Each person has sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares listed, unless otherwise indicated. Beneficial ownership 
includes shares over which the indicated beneficial owner exercises voting and/or investment power.  

/2/ The shares owned by each person, and the shares included in the total number of shares outstanding, have been adjusted, and the 
percentages owned have been computed, in accordance with Rule 13d-3(d)(1) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Shares subject to 
options or warrants currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days are deemed outstanding for computing the percentage ownership of the 
person holding such options or warrants, but are not deemed outstanding for computing the percentage ownership of any other person.  

/3/ Includes 451,249 shares that may be obtained by Mr. Willmott through the exercise of stock options that are currently exercisable or will 
become exercisable within 60 days. Does not include 954,201 shares that may be obtained by Mr. Willmott through the exercise of stock 
options exercisable more than 60 days from the date hereof.  

/4/ Includes 124,250 shares that may be obtained by Mr. Erdahl through the exercise of stock options that are currently exercisable or will 
become exercisable within 60 days. Does not include 1,750 shares that may be obtained by Mr. Erdahl through the exercise of stock options 
exercisable more than 60 days from the date hereof.  

/5/ Includes 123,500 shares that may be obtained by Mr. Ireland through the exercise of stock options that are currently exercisable or will 
become exercisable within 60 days. Does not include 1,500 shares that may be obtained by Mr. Ireland through the exercise of stock options 
exercisable more than 60 days from the date hereof.  

/6/ Includes (i) 78,300 shares owned by members of Mr. Mueller's family in which Mr. Mueller shares voting and dispositive power, (ii) 
1,125,000 shares obtainable at $0.14 per share pursuant to warrants that are exercisable through August 21, 2005 and (iii) 100,000 shares that 
may be obtained by Mr. Mueller through the exercise of stock options that are currently exercisable or will become exercisable within 60 days. 
Does not include 20,000 shares that may be obtained by Mr. Mueller through the exercise of stock options exercisable more than 60 days from 
the date hereof.  

/7/ Includes 95,083 shares that may be obtained by Mr. Van Horn through the exercise of stock options that are currently exercisable or will 
become exercisable within 60 days. Does not include 548,917 shares that may be obtained by Mr. Van Horn through the exercise of stock 
options exercisable more than 60 days from the date hereof.  

/8/ Includes 49,047 shares that may be obtained by Mr. Pelizza through the exercise of stock options that are currently exercisable or will 
become exercisable within 60 days. Does not include 523,850 shares that may be obtained by Mr. Pelizza through the exercise of stock options 
exercisable more than 60 days from the date hereof.  

/9/ Includes 79,660 shares that may be obtained by Mr. Ehrlich through the exercise of stock options that are currently exercisable or will 
become exercisable within 60 days. Does not include 537,800 shares that may be obtained by Mr. Ehrlich through the exercise of stock options 
exercisable more than 60 days from the date hereof.  

/10/ Includes 1,022,789 shares that may be obtained through the exercise of stock options that are currently exercisable or will become 
exercisable within 60 days.  
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=================================================== ============================================  
                 Name of                    Amount and Nature of         Percent of Class/2/ 
            Beneficial Owner               Benefici al Ownership/1/ 
=================================================== ============================================  
            Paul K. Willmott                     49 4,512/3/                      1.0% 
 
            Leland O. Erdahl                     15 7,323/4/                      0.3% 
 
            George R. Ireland                    19 4,073/5/                      0.4% 
 
            Rudolf J. Mueller                  6,88 7,700/6/                     13.5% 
 
           Richard A. Van Horn                   14 8,416/7/                      0.3% 
 
             Mark S. Pelizza                     32 0,568/8/                      0.6% 
 
            Thomas H. Ehrlich                    11 2,060/9/                      0.2% 
 
  All executive officers and directors 
         as a group (7 persons)                8,31 4,652/10/                    16.3% 
=================================================== ============================================  



Item 12. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions  

In May 1995, we borrowed $6,000,000 from two mutual funds included in the Lindner Group and issued 6.5% secured convertible notes, 
convertible at $4.00 per share into shares of Common Stock and maturing on May 25, 1998. In addition, we issued warrants to purchase an 
aggregate of 1,500,000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $4.00 per share to the two funds.  

In March 1998, we extended the maturity date of the loan to May 31, 2000, reduced the conversion price to $3.00 per share, reduced the 
exercise price of the warrants to $3.00 per share and extended expiration date of the warrants to May 31, 2000. In February 2000, the 
$6,000,000 loan and accrued interest of $334,000 was converted into 2,111,478 shares of our Common Stock. The warrants expired 
unexercised on May 31, 2000 except for warrants covering 500,000 shares, which were exercised in 1996 at $4.00 per share.  
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PART IV  

Item 13. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K  

(a) Exhibits.  

See Index to Exhibits on page E-1 for a listing of the exhibits filed as part of this Annual Report.  

(b) Reports on Form 8-K.  

The Company filed a Current Report on Form 8-K on February 16, 2001, disclosing that on February 9, 2001 the Board of Directors of the 
Company recommended and approved the replacement of its principal accountants, Arthur Andersen LLP with the firm of Hein + Associates 
LLP, independent auditors. Hein + Associates LLP have been engaged to perform the audit of the Company's financial statements for the two 
years ended December 31, 1999 and 2000.  

The Company filed a Current Report on Form 8-K on April 18, 2001 disclosing the completion of the private placement of 26,062,500 shares 
of Common Stock of the Company at $0.08 per share, consisting of $1,835,000 in cash and the cancellation of $250,000 of debt.  
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SIGNATURES  

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be 
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.  

Date: March 29, 2002  

URANIUM RESOURCES, INC.  

 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of 
the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.  
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By:    /s/  Paul K. Willmott 
       --------------------------------- 
       Paul K. Willmott, President and 
       Chief Executive Officer 

Signature                                                         Date 
---------                                                         ---- 
 
/s/  Paul K. Willmott                                        March 29, 2002 
----------------------------------------------------- 
Paul K. Willmott, 
Director, President and Chief Executive Officer 
 
/s/  Thomas H. Ehrlich                                       March 29, 2002 
----------------------------------------------------- 
Thomas H. Ehrlich, 
Vice President - Finance and Chief Financial Officer 
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) 
 
/s/  Leland O. Erdahl                                        March 29, 2002 
----------------------------------------------------- 
Leland O. Erdahl, Director 
 
/s/  George R. Ireland                                       March 29, 2002 
----------------------------------------------------- 
George R. Ireland, Director 
 
/s/  Rudolf J. Mueller                                       March 29, 2002 
----------------------------------------------------- 
Rudolf J. Mueller, Director 



URANIUM RESOURCES, INC. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARI ES  
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

 

The accounts of the Company are maintained in United States dollars. All dollar amounts in the financial statements are stated in United States 
dollars except where indicated.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT  

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders Uranium Resources, Inc.:  
Lewisville, Texas  

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Uranium Resources, Inc. as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related 
consolidated statements of operations, changes in shareholders' deficit and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial 
statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial 
statements based on our audits.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Uranium 
Resources, Inc. as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going concern. As 
discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has suffered recurring losses due to depressed uranium prices and 
future working capital requirements are dependent on the Company's ability to generate profitable operations or raise additional capital. Should 
the Company not be able to generate profitable operations or raise additional capital, the Company in all likelihood will be forced to seek 
protection under the United States Bankruptcy Act. These conditions raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concern. Management's plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note 2. The consolidated financial statements do not include any 
adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.  

HEIN + ASSOCIATES LLP  

Dallas, Texas  
March 18, 2002  
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URANIUM RESOURCES, INC.  

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  

ASSETS  

 

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these consolidated statements.  
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                                                           December 31, 
                                               ---- -------------------------- 
                                                    2001             2000 
                                               ---- ---------   -------------- 
 
Current assets: 
   Cash and cash equivalents                   $     549,043   $      212,523 
   Receivables, net                                   10,884           20,883 
   Materials and supplies inventory                   67,163           69,598 
   Prepaid and other current assets                   17,011           19,912 
                                               ---- ---------   -------------- 
        Total current assets                         644,101          322,916 
                                               ---- ---------   -------------- 
 
Property, plant and equipment, at cost: 
 
   Uranium properties                             9 9,968,904       99,532,193 
   Other property, plant and equipment               280,631          383,166 
   Less-accumulated depreciation, 
        depletion and impairment                 (9 9,542,028)     (99,141,105)  
                                               ---- ---------   -------------- 
        Net property, plant and equipment            707,507          774,254 
 
Long-term investment: 
        Certificate of deposit, restricted         1,423,377        2,858,895 
  Other assets                                         4,299            4,299 
                                               ---- ---------   -------------- 
                                               $   2,779,284   $    3,960,364 
                                               ==== =========   ============== 



URANIUM RESOURCES, INC.  

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT  

 

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these consolidated statements.  
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                                                                            December 31, 
                                                                ------------------------------ 
                                                                       2001            2000 
                                                                -------------     ------------ 
Current liabilities: 
   Accounts payable                                             $     121,163    $     199,183 
   Current portion of long-term debt                                       --              581 
   Current portion of restoration reserve                              83,000           83,000 
   Other accrued liabilities                                          207,631          201,281 
                                                                -------------    ------------- 
        Total current liabilities                                     411,794          484,045 
                                                                -------------    ------------- 
 
Other long-term liabilities and deferred credits                    5,605,287        5,010,631 
 
Long-term debt, less current portion                                  585,000          585,000 
 
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 2, 6 and 12) 
 
Shareholders' deficit: 
        Common stock, $.001 par value, shares autho rized: 
        2001- 100,000,000; 2000 -35,000,000 
 shares issued and outstanding 
 (net of treasury shares): 
        2001 - 48,992,278; 2000 - 22,740,366                           49,145           22,893 
 
        Paid-in capital                                            50,299,223       48,240,477 
        Accumulated deficit                                       (54,161,747)     (50,373,264)  
        Less:  Treasury stock (152,500 shares), at cost                (9,418)          (9,418)  
                                                                -------------    ------------- 
             Total shareholders' deficit                           (3,822,797)      (2,119,312)  
                                                                -------------    ------------- 
                                                                $   2,779,284    $   3,960,364 
                                                                =============    ============= 



URANIUM RESOURCES, INC.  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS  

 

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these consolidated statements.  
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                                                                 Year Ended December 31, 
                                                              ------------------------------ 
                                                                   2001             2000 
 
Revenues: 
   Uranium sales - 
        Produced uranium                                      $         --    $      121,954 
        Purchased uranium                                               --           815,148 
                                                              ------------    -------------- 
            Uranium sales                                                0           937,102 
 
   Other uranium revenues                                               --           144,793 
                                                              ------------    -------------- 
                Total revenues                                           0         1,081,895 
 
Costs and expenses: 
   Cost of uranium sales - 
        Direct cost of purchased uranium                                --           799,850 
        Royalties                                                       --            16,626 
        Operating expenses                                          55,668           734,118 
        Provision for restoration and reclamation c osts          2,072,399            12,387 
        Depreciation and depletion                                  35,434           194,021 
   Writedown of uranium properties and 
      other uranium assets                                         474,549         1,414,868 
                                                              ------------    -------------- 
                Total cost of uranium sales                      2,638,050         3,171,870 
                                                              ------------    -------------- 
 
   Loss  from operations 
      before corporate expenses                                 (2,638,050)       (2,089,975))  
 
   Corporate expenses - 
        General and administrative                               1,192,271         1,359,381 
        Depreciation                                                14,446            22,572 
                                                              ------------    -------------- 
                  Total corporate expenses                       1,206,717         1,381,953 
                                                              ------------    -------------- 
Loss from operations                                            (3,844,767)       (3,471,928) 
 
Other income (expense): 
        Interest expense, net of capitalized intere st              (43,745)         (126,859) 
          Interest and other income, net                           100,029           365,435 
                                                              ------------    -------------- 
Net loss                                                      $ (3,788,483)   $   (3,233,352) 
                                                              ============    ============== 
Net loss per common share: 
     Basic                                                    $      (0.09)   $        (0.19) 
                                                              ============    ============== 
     Diluted                                                  $      (0.09)   $        (0.19) 
                                                              ============    ============== 



URANIUM RESOURCES, INC.  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT  

 

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these consolidated statements.  
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                                         Common Sto ck 
                                   ---------------- ---------      Paid-In       Accumulated    Treasur y 
                                    Shares          Amount        Capital         Earnings       Stock  
                                                                                  (Deficit) 
                                   ----------      ---------   --------------  --------------  ------- --- 
 
                                   ----------      ---------   --------------  --------------  ------- --- 
Balances, December 31, 1999        12,341,290      $  12,494   $   40,737,736  $  (47,139,912) $   (9, 418)  
                                   ----------      ---------   --------------  --------------  ------- --- 
 
     Net loss                               -              -                -      (3,233,352) 
     Common stock issuance for 
          deferred compensation        67,598             68           25,282               -           - 
     Common stock issuance for 
          debt                      2,111,478          2,111        6,269,635               -           - 
     Common stock issuance for 
          services                    720,000            720          465,324               -           - 
 
     Common stock issuance          7,500,000          7,500          742,500               -           - 
Balances, December 31, 2000        22,740,366      $  22,893   $   48,240,477  $  (50,373,264) $   (9, 418)  
                                   ----------      ---------   --------------  --------------  ------- --- 
 
     Net loss                               -              -                -      (3,788,483)          - 
 
     Common stock issuance for 
          services                    189,412            189             (189)              -           - 
 
     Common stock issuance         26,062,500         26,063        2,058,935               -           - 
                                   ----------      ---------   --------------  --------------  ------- --- 
Balances, December 31, 2001        48,992,278      $  49,145   $   50,299,223  $  (54,161,747) $   (9, 418)  
                                   ==========      =========   ==============  ==============  ======= === 



URANIUM RESOURCES, INC.  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  

 

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these consolidated statements.  
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                                                                     Year Ended December 31, 
                                                                -------------------------------- 
                                                                     2001               2000 
                                                                -------------     -------------- 
Cash flows from operations: 
 
   Net loss                                                     $  (3,788,483)    $   (3,233,352)  
   Reconciliation of net loss to cash used in opera tions- 
        Provision for restoration and reclamation c osts             2,072,399             12,387 
        Depreciation and depletion                                     49,880            216,593 
        Writedown of uranium properties and other a ssets              474,549          1,414,868 
        Decrease in restoration and reclamation acc rual            (1,612,893)          (784,220)  
        Other non-cash items, net                                     147,852            207,679 
                                                                -------------     -------------- 
Cash flow used in operations, before 
   changes in operating working capital items                      (2,656,696)        (2,166,045)  
Effect of changes in operating working capital item s- 
   Decrease in receivables                                              9,999          1,134,315 
   Decrease in inventories                                              2,435             42,832 
   (Increase) decrease in prepaid and other current  assets              2,901             (3,206)  
   Decrease  in payables and accrued liabilities                      (71,670)          (228,276)  
                                                                -------------     -------------- 
Net cash used in operations                                        (2,713,031)        (1,220,380)  
 
Investing activities: 
   Decrease in investments                                          1,435,518            792,863 
   (Additions) reductions to property, plant and eq uipment - 
        Kingsville Dome                                               (99,621)            60,734 
        Rosita                                                        (55,732)          (159,043)  
        Vasquez                                                       (80,722)           (40,658)  
        Churchrock                                                    (61,785)          (108,274)  
        Crownpoint                                                   (151,156)           243,255 
        Other property                                                (21,368)           (19,546)  
                                                                -------------     -------------- 
Net cash provided by investing activities                             965,134            769,331 
 
Financing activities: 
   Proceeds from borrowings                                           250,000                  - 
   Payments of principal                                                 (581)          (579,995)  
   Issuance of common stock and warrants, net                       1,834,998            750,000 
                                                                -------------     -------------- 
Net cash provided by financing activities                           2,084,417            170,005 
                                                                -------------     -------------- 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent s                  336,520           (281,044)  
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period                        212,523            493,567 
                                                                -------------     -------------- 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period                        $     549,043     $      212,523 
                                                                =============     ============== 



Uranium Resources, Inc.  

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000  

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

Principles of Consolidation and Description of Company  

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of 
America and include the accounts of Uranium Resources, Inc. ("URI") and its wholly owned subsidiaries (collectively "the Company"). All 
significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.  

URI was formed in 1977 and domesticated in Delaware in 1987. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of acquiring, exploring, 
developing and mining uranium properties, using the in situ leach ("ISL") or solution mining process. The primary customers of the Company 
are major utilities who utilize nuclear power to generate electricity. The Company continuously evaluates the creditworthiness of its customers. 
The Company has been, in the past, involved in a number of significant ISL uranium mining joint venture arrangements and has also provided 
consulting, plant design and construction expertise to other companies. At present the Company owns development properties in South Texas 
and in New Mexico. The Company's Rosita and Kingsville Dome uranium production facilities in South Texas resumed operations in June 
1995 and March 1996. Production was ceased at both sites in the first quarter of 1999 when each of the production facilities were shut-in and 
placed on stand-by due to depressed uranium prices. Groundwater restoration activities are currently ongoing at both Kingsville Dome and 
Rosita.  

Inventories  

Materials and supplies inventory at the Company's Kingsville Dome and Rosita sites is valued at the lower of average cost or market.  

Property, Plant and Equipment  

Uranium Properties  

Capitalization of Development Costs - All acquisition and development costs (including financing, salary and related overhead costs) incurred 
in connection with the various uranium properties are capitalized. All properties with significant acquisition or incurred costs are evaluated for 
their realizability on a property-by-property basis. Any impairment of such costs is recognized through a reduction in the net carrying value of 
the asset. Such reduction in net carrying value is recorded by increasing the accumulated depreciation and/or depletion related to the applicable 
property. (see Note 3 - "Uranium Properties - Property Realizability").  

Depreciation and Depletion - Depletion of uranium mineral interests and related development costs is computed on a property-by-property 
basis using the units-of-production method based on the proved and probable recoverable uranium reserves as estimated periodically by the 
Company's geologists and engineers. Depreciation and depletion is provided on the investment costs, net of salvage value, of the various 
uranium properties' production plants and related equipment using the estimated production life of the uranium reserves. Other ancillary plant 
equipment and vehicles are depreciated using a straight line method based upon the estimated useful lives of the assets.  

Other Property  

Other property consists of corporate office equipment, furniture and fixtures and transportation equipment. Depreciation on other property is 
computed based upon the estimated useful lives of the assets. Repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred. Gain or loss on disposal 
of such assets is recorded as other income or expense as such assets are disposed.  

F-8  



Uranium Resources, Inc.  
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000  

Capitalization of Interest  

The Company capitalizes interest cost with respect to properties undergoing exploration or development activities that are not subject to 
depreciation or depletion. The average interest rate on outstanding borrowings during the period is used in calculating the amount of interest to 
be capitalized. Interest capitalized in the twelve months ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 amounted to $0 and $61,000, respectively. Total 
interest costs in these periods were $44,000 and $188,000, respectively.  

Restoration and Reclamation Costs  

Various federal and state mining laws and regulations require the Company to reclaim the surface areas and restore underground water quality 
to the pre-existing mine area average quality. Accruals for the estimated future cost of restoration and reclamation are made on a per-pound 
basis as part of production costs, or when it is determined by an engineering study that an adjustment to the accrual is required. During the year 
ended December 31, 2001 the Company increased its accrual for restoration and reclamation costs by $2,072,000 as a result of revisions to the 
Company's estimates for future restoration and reclamation activities.  

Revenue Recognition for Certain Uranium Sales  

The Company recognizes revenue from the sale of uranium under which substantially all of its obligations related to the delivery have been 
completed.  

Earnings Per Share  

Net earnings (loss) per common share - basic has been calculated based on the weighted average shares outstanding during the year and net 
earnings  
(loss) per common share - diluted has been calculated assuming the exercise or conversion of all dilutive securities. Due to net losses incurred 
for the two years presented there were no dilutive securities included in any of these years.  

The weighted average number of shares used to calculate basic and diluted loss per share were 41,839,000 and 17,335,000 in 2001 and 2000, 
respectively. The potential common stock that was excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share were 9,161,537 and 3,605,094 in 
2001 and 2000, respectively.  

Unamortized Debt Issuance Costs  

Debt discount and related expenses arising from the issuance of debt securities are amortized by the effective interest method.  

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows  

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.  

Additional disclosures of cash flow information follow:  
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                                            Twelve Months Ended December 31, 
                                               2001                  2000 
                                         ---------- -------    -----------------  
Cash paid during the period for: 
     Interest                                $36,00 0               $110,000 



Uranium Resources, Inc.  
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000  

The change in inventories in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows during 2001 and 2000 excludes the changes in uranium inventories for 
non-cash capitalized restoration and depreciation and depletion provisions. Such decreases totaled ($0) and ($71,000), respectively.  

Additional non-cash transactions occurred in 2001 and 2000 and such transactions are summarized as follows:  

 

Restricted Cash  

At December 31, 2001 and 2000 the Company had pledged a certificate of deposit of $1,423,000 and $2,859,000, respectively, in order to 
collateralize surety bonds required for future restoration and reclamation obligations related to the Company's South Texas production and 
development properties. These funds are not readily available to the Company and are not included in cash equivalents.  

In October 2000, the Company signed an agreement with Texas regulatory authorities and the Company's bonding company that provided the 
Company access to up to $2.2 million of Company funds pledged to secure the Company's restoration bonds. The entire $2.2 million has been 
released to the Company as of December 31, 2001. The funds were used by the Company to perform restoration at the Company's Kingsville 
Dome and Rosita mine sites in South Texas. The agreement expired December 31, 2001. A Second Restoration Agreement was entered into in 
January 2002 covering January through April 2002. This agreement provides us access to approximately $600,000 during this four month 
period to continue to conduct restoration activities.  

Use of Estimates  

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make certain 
estimates and assumptions. Such estimates and assumptions may affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Specifically regarding the Company's uranium properties, significant estimates were 
utilized in determining the carrying value of these assets. The actual value realized from these assets may vary significantly from these 
estimates based upon market conditions, financing availability and other factors.  
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In 2001, the Company issued approximately 189,000 
shares of common stock to its regulatory counsel in  
satisfaction of outstanding indebtedness.                     $       --  
 
In 2001, the Company issued 3,125,000 shares of com mon 
stock to $250,000 certain private investors in 
satisfaction of outstanding indebtedness. 
 
In 2000, the Company issued approximately 68,000 sh ares 
of common stock to certain directors in satisfactio n of 
compensation deferred by those individuals.                   $   25,000  
 
In 2000, the Company issued 720,000 shares of commo n 
stock to its regulatory counsel in satisfaction of 
outstanding indebtedness.                                     $  466,000  
 
In 2000, the Company issued approximately 2,111,000  
shares of common stock for the conversion of the 
convertible note and accrued interest to Lindner 
Investments and Lindner Dividend Fund.                        $6,272,000  



Uranium Resources, Inc.  
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000  

Regarding the Company's reserve for future restoration and reclamation costs, significant estimates were utilized in determining the future costs 
to complete the groundwater restoration and surface reclamation at the Company's mine sites. The actual cost to conduct these activities may 
vary significantly from the estimates.  

Risks and Uncertainties  

Historically, the market for uranium has experienced significant price fluctuations. Prices are significantly impacted by global supply and 
demand which is affected by the demand for nuclear power, political and economic conditions, governmental legislation in uranium producing 
and consuming countries, and production levels and costs of production of other producing companies. Increases or decreases in prices 
received could have a significant impact on the Company's future results of operations.  

Impact of Recent Accounting Pronouncements  

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 141, 
"Business Combinations," which addresses financial accounting and reporting for business combinations. SFAS No. 141 is effective for all 
business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 and for all business combinations accounted for under the purchase method initiated before 
but completed after June 30, 2001. The adoption of SFAS No. 141 is not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial 
position or results of operations.  

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets," which addresses, among other things, the financial 
accounting and reporting for goodwill subsequent to an acquisition. The new standard eliminates the requirement to amortize acquired 
goodwill; instead, such goodwill shall be reviewed at least annually for impairment. SFAS No. 142 is required to be adopted on January 1, 
2002. The adoption of SFAS No. 142 is not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial position or results of operations.  

In July 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations". SFAS No. 143 requires entities to record the 
fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation in the period in which it is incurred. When the liability is initially recorded, the entity 
capitalizes a cost by increasing the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset. Over time, the liability is accreted to its present value each 
period, and the capitalized cost is depreciated over the useful life of the related asset. Upon settlement of the liability, an entity either settles the 
obligation for the recorded amount or incurs a gain or loss upon settlement. SFAS No. 143 is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 
2002. The Company will adopt SFAS No. 143 on January 1, 2003 and is currently evaluating the impact on its financial position or results of 
operations.  

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets". SFAS No. 144 
supersedes SFAS No. 121, "Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of". SFAS No. 
121 did not address the accounting for a segment of a business accounted for as a discontinued operation which resulted in two accounting 
models for long-lived assets to be disposed of. SFAS No. 144 establishes a single accounting model for long-lived assets to be disposed of by 
sale and requires that those long-lived assets be measured at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell, whether reported in 
continuing operations or in discontinued operations. SFAS No. 144 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. The 
Company will adopt SFAS No. 144 on January 1, 2002, and anticipates no impact on its financial position or results of operations.  
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Uranium Resources, Inc.  
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000  

2. FUTURE OPERATIONS  

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on the basis of accounting principles applicable to a going concern, which 
contemplates the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. Because uranium prices were depressed 
to a level below the cost of production, the Company ceased production activities in 1999 at both of its two producing properties. In 1999 and 
the first quarter of 2000 the Company monetized all of its remaining long-term uranium sales contracts and sold certain of its property and 
equipment to maintain a positive cash position. The market price of uranium continues to be below the Company's cost to produce uranium and 
the price needed to obtain the necessary financing to allow development of new production areas at the Company's South Texas sites.  

During 2000 and 2001, the Company sought to raise funds to permit it to continue operations until uranium prices increase to a level that will 
permit the Company to resume mining operations. In August 2000 and April 2001 the Company completed two private placements raising 
$750,000 and $2,085,000, respectively through the issuance of 7,500,000 and 26,062,500 shares of common stock, respectively, and warrants 
expiring in August 2005 to purchase an additional 5,625,000 shares of Common Stock. As adjusted for the April offering, the exercise price of 
the warrants is $0.14 per share. The funds raised in the private placements were used to fund the non-restoration overhead costs of the 
Company. The shares issued in the private placements represent approximately 69% of the outstanding Common Stock of the Company. The 
completion of the private placements resulted in a significant dilution of the current stockholders' equity in the Company.  

In addition, in October 2000, the Company finalized an agreement with Texas regulatory authorities and the Company's bonding company that 
provided the Company access to up to $2.2 million of Company funds pledged to secure the Company's restoration bonds. The entire $2.2 
million has been released to the Company as of December 31, 2001. The funds were used by the Company to perform restoration at the 
Company's Kingsville Dome and Rosita mine sites in South Texas. The agreement expired December 31, 2001.  

A Second Restoration Agreement was entered into in January 2002 covering January through April 2002. This agreement provides us access to 
approximately $600,000 during this four month period to continue to conduct restoration activities. As a result of completing the Second 
Restoration Agreement, we believe that we have the cash to remain in business until mid 2002. Additional funds will be required in order for us 
to continue in business after that date.  

The Company will require additional capital resources to fund the development of its undeveloped properties. There is no assurance the 
Company will be successful in raising such capital or that uranium prices will recover to levels which will enable the Company to operate 
profitably. Should the Company be unable to achieve profitable operations or raise additional capital, it may be forced to seek protection under 
federal bankruptcy laws. The accompanying financial statements do not purport to reflect or provide for the consequences of a possible 
bankruptcy proceeding. In particular, such financial statements do not purport to show (a) as to assets, their realizable value on a liquidation 
basis or their availability to satisfy liabilities; (b) as to liabilities, the amount that may be allowed for claims or contingencies, or the status and 
priority thereof; (c) as to stockholder accounts, the effect of any changes that may be made in the capitalization of the Company; and (d) as to 
operations, the effect of any changes that may be made in its business. These factors, raise substantial doubt concerning the ability of the 
Company to continue as a going concern.  
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3. URANIUM PROPERTIES  

Property Realizability  

The Company's potential illiquidity necessitated a reevaluation of the Company's method of valuing its uranium properties for accounting 
purposes. Prior to the fourth quarter of 1999, the Company had valued its uranium properties on a held for production basis, i.e., assuming that 
each property would be ultimately placed into production. Because of the Company's potential illiquidity, the Company determined that the 
liquidation value of the physical assets of each property best represented the fair market value of its long-term assets, and this valuation was 
used in determining the amount of impairment applicable to each of the Company's uranium properties.  
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Uranium Resources, Inc.  
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000  

The Company applied the discounted cash flow method for valuing the properties, because it represented the most reasonable method available. 
Under this method, the Company reduced the carrying value of its uranium properties by $1.4 million in 2000 and $475,000 in 2001 with a 
corresponding charge against earnings.  

Kingsville Dome Property  

In 1981, the Company acquired an exploration property in South Texas, known as Kingsville Dome, from Exxon Corporation. After significant 
production in 1988-1990, the property was put on a standby basis because of low uranium prices, and production ceased in September 1990.  

Wellfield development activities began in December 1995 at Kingsville Dome which lead to the resumption of production at the property in 
March 1996. The Company ceased uranium production operations in the first quarter of 1999 and the property was placed on standby.  

Cost of uranium sales in 2000 and 2001 in the Consolidated Statements of Operations includes $500,000 and $29,000, respectively of costs 
incurred to maintain the facility while Kingsville Dome was on standby and not in production. At December 31, 2001, the Company believes 
that the property contains a significant amount of undeveloped mineralized uranium material. The Company has recorded impairment 
provisions in the years ended December 31, 2000 and 2001 of approximately $104,000 and $103,000,, respectively, for the Kingsville Dome 
property. The net carrying value of the property was approximately $389,000 at December 31, 2001.  

Rosita Property  

In late 1985, the Company acquired several lease holdings in a uranium prospect ("Rosita") in South Texas. Construction and development 
activities began in the first quarter of 1990 and were completed in September 1990 with production commencing immediately thereafter. The 
property was originally put on a standby basis and production ceased in March 1992.  

Wellfield development activity began in early 1995 at Rosita which lead to the resumption of production at the property in June 1995. The 
Company ceased uranium production operations in the first quarter of 1999 and the property was placed on standby.  

Cost of uranium sales in 2000 and 2001 in the Consolidated Statements of Operations includes $272,000 and $30,000, respectively of costs 
incurred to maintain the facility while Rosita was on standby and not in production. The Company has recorded impairment provisions in the 
years ended December 31, 2000 and 2001 of approximately $62,000 and $57,000, respectively for the Rosita property. The net carrying value 
of the property at December 31, 2001 was approximately $244,000.  

Vasquez Property  

The Company holds four mineral leases on 842 gross and net acres located in southwestern Duval County, in south Texas.  

The secondary lease term for this property expired in February 2000. URI tendered payment under the shut-in royalty clause of the leases in 
2000 and 2001 and also holds its rights to the property through continuous development clauses in the leases. The lessor returned the 
Company's shut-in royalty payments for 2000 and 2001 without disclosing their reasons for rejecting the Company's payment. The Company 
believes that it will continue to hold its rights to the property under either the shut-in royalty or the continuing development clauses of the lease. 
The leases provide for royalties based on uranium sales.  
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Uranium Resources, Inc.  
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000  

All of the required permits to begin uranium production for this property have been received from the Texas Natural Resource Conservation 
Commission and the Texas Department of Health.  

The Company has recorded impairment provisions in the years ended December 31, 2000 and 2001 of approximately $900,000 and $81,000, 
respectively for the Vasquez property. The net carrying value of the property was written down to zero at December 31, 2000 and 2001.  

Churchrock Properties  

In December 1986, the Company acquired properties in the Churchrock region of New Mexico.  

In September 1991, an additional 200 acres of leases were obtained in exchange for a future production royalty payment which, based upon the 
expected selling price of the uranium production, may vary between 5% and 10%.  

Permitting activities are currently ongoing on both of these properties. The net carrying value of these properties were written down to zero. 
Such writedown resulted in a pre-tax charge against earnings of approximately $109,000 and $62,000 in 2000 and 2001, respectively.  

Crownpoint Property  

In August 1988, the Company acquired the Crownpoint property, consisting of 163 acres of leases and related equipment and buildings for cash 
payments of $550,000, amounts payable in future years of $950,000 and a sliding scale overriding royalty on future production. The present 
value of the future payable amount, $407,054 at December 31, 1996, is recorded as a purchase money obligation. Additionally, also in 1988, 
the Company staked 321 acres of claims in the same area. In August 1993, the Company acquired approximately 959 acres of leases adjoining 
the Crownpoint properties. The net carrying value of these properties were written down to approximately $61,000 at December 31, 2001. Such 
writedown resulted in a pre-tax charge against earnings of approximately $200,000 and $151,000 in 2000 and 2001, respectively.  

Santa Fe Properties  

In March 1997 the Company acquired the fee interest in 177,000 acres and the exploration rights through 2014 on an additional 346,000 acres 
in north western New Mexico. To maintain the exploration rights the Company must spend $200,000 per year on exploration through 2007 and 
$400,000 per year thereafter through 2014. The Company has been informed by the grantor of such rights that it is in default of our exploration 
commitment and that unless the default is cured the exploration agreement may be cancelled. The Company does not expect to be able to cure 
the alleged default within the time frame specified. The grantor has refused to waive the default. The Company does not believe that the loss of 
these exploration rights will have a material adverse effect on it.  

The net carrying value of the property at December 31, 2001 is zero. Impairment provisions resulted in a pre-tax charge against operations of 
approximately $18,000 and $17,000 in 2000 and 2001, respectively.  

4. CONTRACT COMMITMENTS  

Sales Contracts  

Long-term contracts have historically been the primary source of revenue to the Company. Currently, the Company does not have any 
remaining scheduled uranium deliveries under contract.  
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000  

The Company must secure new profitable uranium sales contracts in order for it to continue in existence. Demonstrated profitability under such 
new contracts will form the basis for the Company to be able to secure the requisite financing/equity infusion to resume production at its mine 
sites. The profitability under such new contracts will depend on a number of factors including the cost of producing uranium at the Company's 
mining properties, the Company's ability to produce uranium to meet its sales commitments and the spot market price of uranium.  

All uranium sales revenues for the twelve months ended December 31, 2000 were from sales to one customer for a total of $937,000.  

5. SHORT-TERM DEBT  

NationsBank Credit Agreement  

In May 1996 the Company entered into a $3.0 million revolving-credit facility with NationsBank, N.A. ("Nations"). In July 1997 the facility 
was renewed and expanded to $5.0 million for a two-year term. The facility was renewed again for $3.0 million in July 1999 for a one-year 
term. This facility was secured by the Company's uranium inventory and/or its receivables from its uranium sales contracts with interest on the 
loan accruing at the prime rate plus 1%. In 2000 the facility expired and all remaining principal and interest payments were made.  

6. LONG-TERM DEBT  

Lindner Note  

On May 25, 1995 the Company borrowed an aggregate of $6 million from Lindner Investments and Lindner Dividend Fund (collectively the 
"Lender"), and issued secured convertible notes (the "Lindner Note"). The Lindner Note was initially issued for a term of three years and bore 
interest at an annual rate of 6.5% and was convertible at any time during the three-year term into 1.5 million shares of the Company's common 
stock at an initial conversion price of $4.00 per share. The Lender also received a three-year warrant to purchase 1.5 million shares of the 
Company's common stock at an initial price of $4.00 per share. In 1995, 500,000 warrants were exercised for $2.0 million. Certain others 
associated with the transaction were granted warrants and options to purchase up to 150,000 shares at an initial exercise price of $4.00 per 
share. As of December 31, 2001, these persons had exercised 62,500 shares of warrants under the agreement and 87,500 shares of warrants 
have expired.  

In March 1998, the Company and the Lender extended the maturity date of the Lindner Note to May 31, 2000. The note was convertible at any 
time during this term into 2.0 million shares of the Company's common stock at a conversion price of $3.00 per share. In connection with this 
transaction the Company allocated $408,000 to the value of the warrants resulting in an effective rate of 10% on the refinanced note. All costs 
associated with these warrants have been amortized.  

In February 2000, the entire $6,000,000 plus accrued interest of $334,000 were converted into 2,111,478 shares of the Company's common 
stock. The remaining warrants expired unexercised on May 31, 2000.  
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000  

Benton Convertible Note  

During 1994, the Company engaged in certain transactions with companies controlled by Mr. Oren L. Benton (the "Benton Companies"). In 
1995, Benton and various of the Benton Companies filed for protection under Chapter 11 of the Federal Bankruptcy Code (the "Benton 
Bankruptcy"). In 1998 the Trustee sought recovery of approximately $1.6 million of payments made by certain of the Benton Companies to the 
Company, claiming that the payments and advances were avoidable as preferential and/or fraudulent transfers. On July 17, 2000, the parties 
entered into a settlement agreement whereby the Company issued a $135,000 Convertible Note due July 17, 2005, assigned its rights under a 
$65,000 Promissory Note from Benton and assigned certain claims against Union Bank of Switzerland in settlement of the complaint. Interest 
on the Convertible Note is due at maturity and the Note bears interest at a rate of 6% per annum. The Company may prepay the Note at any 
time and the holder of the Note may convert all principal and accrued interest into shares of the Company's common stock at a conversion price 
of $0.75 per share.  

Summary of Long-Term Debt  

 

Maturities of long-term debt are as follows:  

 

7. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS  

See note 6 for conversion of Lindner Note.  

8. SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT  

Common Stock  

Common Stock Issued in 2000  

In 2000, the Company issued 67,598 shares of common stock to certain officers and directors of the Company in connection with the Uranium 
Resources, Inc. 1999 Deferred Compensation Plan (the "Plan") in satisfaction of compensation deferred by those individuals.  

In August 2000, the Company raised $750,000 of equity by the issuance of 7.5 million shares of Common Stock at $0.10 per share to a group 
of private investors. The investors were also issued five-year warrants to purchase an aggregate of 5,625,000 shares of Common Stock at an 
exercise price of $0.14 per share that are exercisable through August 2005.  
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                                                                    At December 31, 
                                                  - ---------------------------------------------------  
                                                             2001                          2000 
                                                       -----------------             -----------------  
Long-term debt of the Company consists of: 
   Crownpoint property (Note 3)                        $        450,000              $        450,000 
   Benton Convertible Note                                      135,000                       135,000 
   Other                                                             --                           581 
                                                       -----------------             -----------------  
                                                                585,000                       585,581 
   Less - Current portion                                            --                           581 
                                                       -----------------             -----------------  
      Total long-term debt                             $        585,000              $        585,000 
                                                       =================             =================  

For the Twelve Months Ended:                  For t he Twelve Months Ended: 
------------------------------                ----- ------------------------- 
December 31, 2001               $    --       Decem ber 31, 2004               $     --  
December 31, 2002               $    --       Decem ber 31, 2005               $135,000  
December 31, 2003               $    --       Decem ber 31, 2006 and beyond    $450,000  



Uranium Resources, Inc.  
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000  

Common Stock Issued in 2001  

In April 2001, the Company raised an additional $1.8 million of equity by the issuance of 22.9 million shares of Common Stock at $0.08 per 
share to a group of private investors. An additional 3.1 million shares of Common Stock were issued to some of these investors in satisfaction 
of an outstanding loan of $250,000. Interest accrued on this loan at a rate of 11% per annum. In 2001 interest paid on this loan totaled $5,000.  

Increase in Authorized Shares  

In March 2001, the Company's stockholders approved an amendment to the Company's Restated Certificate of Incorporation to increase the 
authorized shares of Common Stock, par value $0.0001 per share (the "Common Stock'), from 35,000,000 to 100,000,000. Stockholders also 
approved an amendment to the Company's 1995 Stock Incentive Plan (the "1995 Plan"), to increase the number of shares of the Company's 
Common Stock eligible for issuance under the 1995 Plan from 1,250,000 shares to 4,000,000 shares.  

Settlement of Regulatory Counsel Indebtedness  

The Company reached a compromise with its regulatory counsel settling an outstanding indebtedness of approximately $566,000 for a payment 
of $100,000 in cash, the assignment of certain claims, the issuance of 720,000 shares of Common Stock. In 2001, an additional 189,412 shares 
of Common Stock were issued in completion of the settlement agreement.  

Lindner Note Conversion  

In February 2000, the Company converted the Lindner Note as discussed in Note 6, into 2,111,478 shares of common stock. See Note 6 - 
Long-Term Debt "Lindner Note" for further discussion.  

Financial Advisors' Options  

On May 25, 1995, the Company granted options to purchase 150,000 shares at an initial conversion price of $4.00 per share to certain financial 
advisors associated with the Lindner Note transaction. The options were immediately exercisable. See note 6 for discussion of the exercise and 
expiration of such options.  

Stock Options  

Directors Stock Options  

On May 25, 1995, the Company granted options to certain directors of URI, to purchase 200,000 shares of the Company's common stock at an 
exercise price of $4.50 per share. All such options were immediately exercisable and were originally scheduled to expire May 24, 1998 or 30 
days after the holder ceases to be a director of the Company or one year after such holder's death, whichever occurs first. In November 1997, 
the term of these options was extended for three years and the exercise price was increased to $4.75 per share. In May 2001 these options 
expired unexercised.  
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On August 16, 1995, the Company granted options to a director of URI, to purchase 100,000 shares of the Company's common stock at an 
exercise price of $8.38 per share which was the fair market value of a share of common stock on August 16, 1995. Such options were 
immediately exercisable and were originally scheduled to expire May 24, 1998, 30 days after the holder ceases to be a director of the Company 
or one year after his death, whichever occurs first. In November 1997, the term of these options was extended for three years and the exercise 
price was increased to $8.63 per share. In June 2001 these options expired unexercised.  

On June 19, 2001, the Company granted options to certain directors of URI to purchase 300,000 shares of the Company's common stock at an 
exercise price of $0.22 per share. All such options are immediately exercisable and are scheduled to expire June 19, 2011 or 30 days after the 
holder ceases to be a director of the Company or one year after such holder's death, whichever occurs first. None of these options has been 
exercised as of December 31, 2001.  

Options Issuable for Deferred Compensation  

The Company has a 1999 Deferred Compensation Plan (the "1999 Plan") and a 2000-2001 Deferred Compensation Plan (the "2000-2001 
Plan") whereby executive officers and directors were permitted to defer up to 100% of their compensation for the years 1999-2001.  

Under the 1999 Deferred Compensation Plan (the "1999 Plan") executive officers and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries were 
permitted to defer until January 11, 2006 up to 100% of their 1999 salary. At the time of the deferral election, a participant could elect to 
receive payment of up to 100% of the deferred amount of salary in shares of our Common Stock. A total of $241,690 was deferred under the 
1999 Plan of which $133,450 was paid by issuing 355,861 shares of Common Stock at $0.375 per share.  

The Company also has a 2000-2001 Deferred Compensation Plan (the "2000-2001 Plan"). Under that plan executive officers and directors were 
permitted to defer up to 100% of their 2000 and 2001 salary with payment thereof to be made on January 11, 2006. On or before that date, the 
participant may elect to receive the deferred amount in shares of our Common Stock valued at $0.20 per share. As of December 31, 2001, a 
total of $336,090 has been deferred under that plan and no elections have yet been made to convert any such amounts into shares.  

Market for Common Stock  

Before March 24, 1999 the Company's Common Stock was traded on NASDAQ National Market under the trading symbol URIX. On March 
23, 1999, the common stock was delisted from the NASDAQ National Market. From March 24, 1999 through November 13, 2000 the stock 
was quoted on the Over the Counter Bulletin Board (the "OTCBB"). On November 14, 2000 the stock became ineligible for trading on the 
OTCBB and began trading on the Pink Sheets. Commencing August 22, 2001 the stock again was quoted on the OTCBB.  

9. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS  

The Company has three stock option plans, the Employees' Stock Option Plan, the 1995 Stock Incentive Plan and the Directors' Stock Option 
Plan. The Company accounts for these plans under APB Opinion No. 25, under which no compensation cost has been recognized. Had 
compensation cost for these plans been determined consistent with FASB Statement No. 123 ("FAS 123"), the Company's net loss and loss per 
share ("EPS") for the year ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 would have been adjusted to the following pro forma amounts:  
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The fair value of each option is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted 
average assumptions used for grants in 2001 and 2000, respectively: expected volatility of 101% and 99% and risk-free interest rates of 5.6% 
and 6.5%. An expected life of 7.4 and 4.3 years was used for options granted to the employees and directors, respectively.  

The FAS 123 method of accounting has not been applied to options granted prior to January 1, 1995, and accordingly the resulting pro forma 
compensation cost may not be representative of that to be expected in future years.  

The Directors' Stock Option Plan provides for the grant of 20,000 stock options to each of the non-employee directors along with additional 
annual grants of stock options upon re-election as directors at the Company's annual meeting. Currently there are 91,000 stock options 
outstanding under the Directors' Stock Option Plan. Also, on January 15, 1992, the Board of Directors approved the grant of 577,248 stock 
options under the Employees' Stock Option Plan. All of the previously outstanding options were canceled upon the effectiveness of the new 
options. On August 10, 1994, the Board of Directors increased the available options under the Employees' Stock Option Plan and the Directors' 
Stock Option Plan to 850,000 options and 150,000 options, respectively. On October 11, 1995, the Board of Directors elected to discontinue 
grants under the Employees' Stock Option Plan with the adoption of a stock incentive plan covering key employees. The 1995 Stock Incentive 
Plan provided for the grant of a maximum of 750,000 stock options. These options may be incentive or nonqualified stock options. On June 5, 
1998, the Company's stockholders approved an increase in the available shares under the Stock Incentive Plan to 1,250,000. During 2000 the 
Company's board of directors approved an increase the available shares under the Stock Incentive Plan to 4,000,000, subject to stockholder 
approval. Such approval was received in March 2001. As of December 31, 2001, there are 2,588,795 shares subject to outstanding options 
under the 1995 Stock Incentive Plan.  

Additional details about the options granted under the stock option plans are as follows:  
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                                             2001              2000 
                                             ----              ---- 
Net Earnings (Loss):      As reported  $ (3,788,483 )     $  (3,233,352)  
                            Pro forma  $ (3,905,786 )     $  (3,320,907)  
 
          Basic EPS:      As reported  $      (0.09 )     $       (0.09)  
                            Pro forma  $      (0.09 )     $       (0.09)  
 
        Diluted EPS:      As reported  $      (0.09 )     $       (0.19)  
                            Pro forma  $      (0.09 )     $       (0.19)  

                                                               --------------------------------------- ---------------  
                                                                               At December 31, 2001 
                                                               --------------------------------------- ---------------  
                                                                Options 
                                      Exercise      Options     Available     Options      Options        Options 
           Date of Grant                Price       Granted        for       Exercised     Canceled     Outstanding 
                                                                Exercise 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ---------------  
January 15, 1992                      $2.94           617,248       14,437      327,625       275,186         14,437 
May 22, 1992                          $3.00             2,000           --        1,000         1,000             -- 
=================================================== =================================================== ===============  
   Balances at December 31, 1992                      619,248       14,437      328,625       276,186         14,437 
=================================================== =================================================== ===============  
February 26, 1993                     $2.50            10,000           --        2,500         7,500             -- 
May 27, 1993                          $3.50             2,000           --          500         1,500             -- 
=================================================== =================================================== ===============  
   Balances at December 31, 1993                      631,248       14,437      331,625       285,186         14,437 
=================================================== =================================================== ===============  
 
July 11, 1994                         $4.38            20,000       20,000           --            --         20,000 
August 10, 1994                       $4.25           140,000       19,000        1,000       120,000         19,000 



Uranium Resources, Inc.  
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000  

 

The exercise price for the options granted under the stock option plans has been the market price of the common stock on the date granted. The 
terms of the options provide that no options may be exercised for one year after grant, and then for ratable exercise over the subsequent four-
year period, with a total exercisable period of ten years.  

The exercise price for the options granted under the Stock Incentive Plan has been the market price of the common stock on the date granted. 
The terms of the options are determined by the Board of Directors upon grant; however, no options may be exercised after a period of ten 
years. The weighted average fair value of options granted in 2001 and 2000 were $0.16 and $0.15, respectively.  
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                                                               --------------------------------------- ------------  
                                                                               At December 31, 2001 
                                                               --------------------------------------- ------------  
                                                                 Options 
                                      Exercise      Options     Available     Options      Options       Options 
           Date of Grant                Price       Granted        for       Exercised     Canceled    Outstanding  
                                                                Exercise 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------  
December 15, 1994                     $  5.88         3,000        2,000           --         1,000          2,000  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------  
   Balances at December 31, 1994                    794,248       55,437      332,625       406,186         55,437  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------  
February 24, 1995                     $  4.13       210,000      100,000           --       110,000        100,000  
April 12, 1995                        $  3.88        10,000       10,000           --            --         10,000  
May 26, 1995                          $  3.75        40,000       20,000           --        20,000         20,000  
August 16, 1995                       $  8.38       100,000      100,000           --            --        100,000  
August 31, 1995                       $  6.88       127,508       40,200           --        87,308         40,200  
October 11, 1995                      $  6.94        35,000       35,000           --            --         35,000  
December 19, 1995                     $  5.50         3,000        2,000           --         1,000          2,000  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------  
   Balances at December 31, 1995                  1 ,319,756      362,637      332,625       624,494        362,637  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------  
February 22, 1996                     $  9.75       178,810       65,880           --       112,930         65,880  
May 29, 1996                          $ 17.00         3,000        2,000           --         1,000          2,000  
May 30, 1996                          $ 16.13        75,000           --           --        75,000             --  
July 22, 1996                         $ 11.13        50,000           --           --        50,000             --  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------  
   Balances at December 31, 1996                  1 ,626,566      430,517      332,625       863,424        430,517  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------  
February 10, 1997                     $ 7.125       182,405       67,915           --       114,490         67,915  
April 1, 1997                         $  5.50        55,000       55,000           --            --         55,000  
May 1, 1997                           $  5.00         3,000        2,000           --         1,000          2,000  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------  
   Balances at December 31, 1997                  1 ,866,971      555,432      332,625       978,914        555,432  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------  
February 23, 1998                     $2.9375       172,000       86,250           --        57,000        115,000  
June 5, 1998                          $  2.50         3,000        1,500           --         1,000          2,000  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------  
   Balances at December 31, 1998                  2 ,041,971      643,182      332,625     1,036,914        672,432  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------  
June 18, 1999                         $  0.25         2,000        1,000           --            --          2,000  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------  
   Balances at December 31, 1999                  2 ,043,971      644,182      332,625     1,036,914        674,432  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------  
September 27, 2000                    $  0.20     2 ,250,000      562,500           --            --      2,250,000  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------  
   Balances at December 31, 2000                  4 ,293,971    1,206,682      332,625     1,036,914      2,924,432  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------  
February 28, 2001                     $  0.19       475,500      158,498           --            --        475,500  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------  
June 19, 2001                         $  0.22        20,000           --           --            --         20,000  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------  
   Balances at December 31, 2001                  4 ,789,471    1,365,180      332,625     1,036,914      3,419,932  
=================================================== =================================================== ============  



Uranium Resources, Inc.  
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000  

10. FEDERAL INCOME TAXES  

The deferred federal income tax asset consists of the following:  

 

Major items causing the Company's tax provision to differ from the federal statutory rate of 34% were:  

 

The Company's net operating loss carryforwards generated in 2001 and in prior years have generally been valued, net of valuation allowance, at 
Alternative Minimum Tax ("AMT") rates imposed by the 1986 Tax Reform Act ("the 86 ACT"). It is assumed that these deferred tax assets 
will be realized at such rates.  

At December 31, 2001, approximately $45,418,000 of percentage depletion (available for regular tax purposes) had not been utilized to shelter 
book income and is available to carry forward to future accounting periods. The Company received refunds of $183 and $1,115 from prior 
year's federal income payments in 2001 and 2000, respectively.  

The Company also has available for regular federal income tax purposes at December 31, 2001 estimated net operating loss ("NOL") 
carryforwards of approximately $36,793,000 which expire primarily in 2004 through 2021, if not previously utilized. Following the sale of 
stock in 2001 described in Note 2, use of the Company's NOL will be severely limited on an annual and aggregate basis. For this reason, the 
NOL is not included as a deferred tax asset in the table above.  
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                                                            December 31, 
                                                  - -----------------------------  
                                                      2001             2000 
                                                  - -------------  --------------  
 
Property development costs - net of amortization  $    9,645,000   $  10,396,000 
Accelerated depreciation                               (118,000)       (114,000)  
Restoration reserves                                  1,674,000       1,517,000 
Net operating loss and percentage 
   depletion carryforwards                               16,000          15,000 
Valuation allowance and other - net                 (11,217,000)    (11,814,000)  
                                                  - ------------   ------------- 
     Total deferred income tax asset              $            0   $           0 
                                                  = ============   ============= 

                             For the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 
                                 2001                       2000 
                      -------------------------  -- ---------------------- 
                                       % of                       % of 
                         Amount        Pretax       Amount       Pretax 
                         ------        Income       ------       Income 
                                       ------                    ------ 
 
Pretax loss           $(3,788,483)                $ (3,233,352) 
                      -----------   ----------    - ----------   -------- 
Pretax loss times 
  statutory tax rate   (1,288,000)         (34%)   (1,099,000)       (34%)  
Increases in taxes 
  resulting from: 
   Percentage 
depletion               1,288,000           34%     1,099,000         34% 
                      -----------   ----------    - ----------   -------- 
Income tax benefit    $         0            0%   $          0          0% 
                      ===========   ==========    = ==========   ======== 



Uranium Resources, Inc.  
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000  

11. OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED CREDITS  

Other long-term liabilities and deferred credits on the balance sheet consisted of:  

 

12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES  

The Company's mining operations are subject to federal and state regulations for the protection of the environment, including water quality. 
These laws are constantly changing and generally becoming more restrictive. The ongoing costs of complying with such regulations have not 
been significant to the Company's annual operating costs. Future mine closure and reclamation costs are provided for as each pound of uranium 
is produced on a unit-of-production basis. The Company reviews its reclamation obligations each year and determines the appropriate unit 
charge. The Company also evaluates the status of current environmental laws and their potential impact on their accrual for costs. The 
Company believes its operations are in compliance with current environmental regulations.  

The Company is from time to time involved in various legal proceedings of a character normally incident to its business. Management does not 
believe that adverse decisions in any pending or threatened proceedings will have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial 
condition or results of operations.  

13. DISCLOSURES ABOUT THE FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 107, "Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments," requires disclosure about the 
fair value of financial instruments. The Company is unable to assess the fair value of its debt instrument at December 31, 2001 due to the 
Company's financial position and its inability to secure comparable financing.  

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENT  

On December 4, 2001, the Company commenced an action in the 229/th/ Judicial District Court in Duvall County, Texas against the lessors for 
the Vasquez property to declare that the leases remain in full force and effect. The lease term expired in February 2000. The leases contain 
clauses that permit the extension of the term of the leases if the Company is engaged in operations designed to establish production. In addition 
the leases permit the Company to pay a per acre royalty to extend the term. The Company tendered payment of the required royalty in 2000, 
2001 and 2002. The lessor returned all such payments without disclosing their reasons for rejecting the payment. The Company believes that it 
continues to hold its rights to the property under either the shut-in royalty or the continuing development clauses of the leases. The Company 
has been informed that the lessors granted a lease to a third party, Everest Exploration, that was contingent upon the termination of the leases. 
Everest has moved to intervene and has asserted a claim that the leases have expired. While the Company believes that the leases remain in full 
force and effect, the Company is unable to predict the outcome of this case.  
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                                                              December 31, 
                                                       -------------------------  
                                                           2001          2000 
                                                       ------------ ------------  
Reserve for future restoration and reclamation cost s, 
   net of current portion of $83,000 in 
   2001 and 2000 (Note 1)                              $ 4,730,161  $  4,270,655  
Long-term accounts and interest payable                     11,796         3,696  
Royalties payable                                          500,000       500,000  
Deferred compensation                                      363,330       236,280  
                                                       -----------  ------------  
                                                       $ 5,605,287  $  5,010,631  
                                                       ===========  ============  
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Exhibit 10.19  

Second Kingsville Dome and Rosita Mines Agreement  

This Agreement is entered into by the Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission ("TNRCC"), the Texas Department of Health 
("TDH"), URI, Inc. ("URI") and the United States Fidelity & Guaranty Company ("USF&G") on January 1, 2002 and shall run until April 30, 
2002.  

Recitals  

A. URI is the owner and operator of the Kingsville Dome and Rosita Mines located in Kleberg and Duval Counties, Texas, respectively.  

B. The following are the outstanding Bonds issued by USF&G on behalf of the Kingsville Dome and Rosita Mines to provide assurance that 
funds will be available when needed for groundwater restoration, decommissioning, and, if applicable, for the long term care of the facility. By 
this Agreement, the Agencies agree that they cannot enforce in excess of the amounts set forth below against USF&G:  

On June 23, 2000, USF&G issued to TDH on behalf of the Kingsville Dome Mine the Surety Bond Rider to Performance Guarantee Bond 
(Bond No.41-0130-40028-96-6) that has been in effect since December 2, 1996, in the penal sum of One Million Seven Hundred Forty One 
Thousand Five Hundred Forty Two Dollars ($1,741,542.00). The agencies acknowledge their continued obligations under the prior Kingsville 
Dome and Rosita Mines Agreement with respect to the reduction of bond amounts for the final quarter of the prior Agreement.  

On June 23, 2000, USF&G issued to TDH on behalf of the Rosita Mine the Surety Bond Rider to Performance Guarantee Bond (Bond No. 41-
0130-40040-96-6) that has been in effect since November 26, 1996, in the penal sum of One Million Nine Hundred Nine Thousand Six 
Hundred Forty Three Dollars ($1,909,643.00). The agencies acknowledge their continued obligations under the prior Kingsville Dome and 
Rosita Mines Agreement with respect to the reduction of bond amounts for the final quarter of the prior Agreement.  

C. URI, to induce USF&G, as Surety, to execute the Bonds on behalf of URI, executed and delivered a Master Surety Agreement for the 
benefit of Surety, dated November 25, 1996, pursuant to which URI, agreed to exonerate, hold harmless, indemnify and keep indemnified 
USF&G from and against any and all demands, claims, liabilities, losses and expenses of whatsoever kind or nature (including but not limited 
to, interest, court costs and counsel fees) imposed upon, sustained, or incurred by USF&G by reason of: (1) USF&G having executed, provided 
or procured Bonds in behalf of URI, Inc., or (2) URI, Inc.'s failure to perform or comply with any of the provisions of the Master Surety 
Agreement. By this document, URI, Inc. reaffirms its indemnity obligations under the Master Surety Agreement.  

D. This Agreement is entered by USF&G and the Agencies at the request of URI, which has acknowledged that it is financially unable to meet 
its obligations to continue groundwater restoration of the Kingsville Dome and Rosita Mines without this Agreement. This Agreement does not 
replace or supersede any licenses, permits, or regulatory requirements already in place. It is not intended that the terms of this Agreement affect 
or change the responsibilities of TDH and TNRCC as set forth in the Memorandum of Understanding between the agencies found at 25 TAC 
Sec. 289.101(f).  

E. USF&G may have certain defenses to claims made under the Bonds, and it expressly reserves any and all defenses it may have or hereinafter 
acquire.  

F. The purpose of this Agreement is, variously, to (1) protect the public health and environment by facilitating the implementation and 
continuation of groundwater restoration of the Mines; (2) provide a mechanism for USF&G to receive an equivalent reduction in the penal sum 
of its liability under the Bonds in consideration of USF&G's funding of groundwater restoration costs of the Mines.  
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Now, therefore, the parties agree as follows:  

1. Incorporation. The above Recitals are hereby incorporated into this Agreement.  

2. Definitions. The following terms shall have the meanings defined below:  

1.1 "Agencies" means collectively TNRCC and TDH.  

1.2 "Bonds" means the Bonds described in Recital B.  

1.3 "Restoration Costs" means any reasonable costs directly associated with or necessary for groundwater restoration activities at the Mines. 
Costs that would not be allowed for bond reduction include, but are not limited to: salaries of personnel for time not directly relating to 
groundwater restoration at the Kingsville Dome and Rosita mines; travel to or activities regarding other URI sites; general and administrative 
costs; bond premiums, property taxes, byproduct disposal costs, license fees, insurance and other holding costs; legal costs; costs of contesting 
TNRCC or TDH actions; and/or costs for the resumption of production operations.  

1.4 "Effective Date" means the date on which this Agreement has been executed by all of the parties.  

1.5 "Mines" means the Kingsville Dome Mine and the Rosita Mine.  

1.6 "Surety" means United States Fidelity & Guaranty Company.  

1.7 "TDH" means the Texas Department of Health.  

1.8 "TNRCC" means the Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission.  

1.9 "URI" means URI, Inc.  

1.10 "USF&G" means the United States Fidelity & Guaranty Company.  

3. Funding of Operations. USF&G agrees, subject to the provisions contained herein, to fund reasonable restoration costs at the Kingsville 
Dome Mine and Rosita Mine as enumerated in Appendix A attached to and by this reference incorporated in this Agreement. In the event that 
URI is able to secure funds outside of USF&G, other than funds provided by URI's investor group that are specifically designated for general 
and administrative costs, other holding costs and/or for the resumption of production operations, URI will notify the TDH and TNRCC for a 
determination if these funds should be used to substitute or supplement funding by USF&G. In the event URI secures investor group funding 
during the term of this Agreement, URI shall provide the TDH and the TNRCC with a summary of the expenditures made from such investor 
group funding.  

4. Period of Funding/Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall remain in force and effect from its effective date until April 30, 2002. In the 
event URI fails to meet the performance Criteria set forth in Appendix B for a specific month and such Performance Criteria are not waived by 
the Agencies, the Agencies may terminate the Agreement with 10 days notice to URI. If the Agencies terminate the Agreement they shall 
notify USF&G of such action. This notification shall occur within 24 hours upon termination of the Agreement, and will be effective upon 
receipt by USF&G.  

5. Force Majeure. URI shall not be deemed as failing to meet the Performance Criteria for a specific month due to any Act of God, war, strike, 
riot, electrical outage, accident, fire, explosion, flood, blockade, or other catastrophe hereafter "force majeure," beyond URI's reasonable-
control. In the event of such force majeure, URI shall notify the Agencies of the event within 24 hours. Should such force majeure prevent or  
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reduce groundwater restoration activities for the subsequent month, then the Agencies may terminate the Agreement with 10 days notice to 
URI.  

6. Record Keeping. URI shall include a summary of all reasonable restoration costs incurred during a month in the monthly performance 
reports to the Agencies. URI will maintain complete records of reasonable expenditures made during the term of this Agreement and will make 
those records available upon request from the Agencies for auditing purposes.  

URI shall maintain and make available to the Agencies upon request, records of its groundwater restoration activities at the Mines. These 
records shall include: 1) accurate and legible maps of well fields and well locations; and 2) accurate and up to date well completion and 
maintenance information.  

7. Capital Allowance. USF&G agrees, subject to the provisions contained herein, to fund $45,000 as reasonable restoration costs, for additional 
reverse osmosis water treatment equipment to be installed on the remote ion exchange equipment located in Production Area 3 at the Kingsville 
Dome location ("PAA3") as enumerated in Appendix A attached to and by this reference incorporated in this Agreement. Once functional, this 
equipment shall be used to conduct restoration in PAA3 over the term of this Agreement. PAA3 restoration shall be concurrent with the 
restoration operations at the remainder of the Kingsville Dome mine. The restoration operation cost of PAA3 equipment shall be included in 
the amounts enumerated in Appendix A and shall only be allowed in any month if the Reverse Osmosis unit at PAA3 is operational in that 
month.  

8. Security and Electricity Advance Payment. URI shall make a payment to the Texas Department of Health Bureau of Radiation Control in the 
amount of $37,500 to provide for site security and electrical power requirements for three months of groundwater restoration operations in the 
event that groundwater restoration operations cease at the mines before groundwater restoration is completed. This advance payment shall be 
made by URI within 10 days of receipt from USF&G. This advanced security and electrical payment shall be included in the amounts 
enumerated in Appendix A and be subject to appropriate bond reduction for each location. URI stipulates that this advance payment is not, and 
shall not be, assets of URI, Inc.'s bankruptcy estate.  

9. Progress Reports, Bond Reduction and Future Payments to URI, Inc. On January 31, 2002 and each month thereafter as set forth in 
Appendix C, TDH will provide USF&G with a written bond reduction notice ("bond reduction notice") in the format attached hereto as 
Appendix D. It is agreed by TDH that it will issue the bond notice reduction within 10 working days following the end of the month contingent 
upon receiving USF&G's certification of monthly advances to URI. The failure to do so shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement for 
which USF&G would thereafter have no further obligation to provide any further funding pursuant to this Agreement  

The bond reduction notice will reduce the penal amount of the bonds on a dollar for dollar basis for restoration costs paid during the previous 
period. Penal sum reductions will be allocated to the appropriate bonds for the appropriate projects. Under no circumstance will the bond 
reduction for a preceding month exceed the reasonable restoration cost projections in Appendix  
A. URI shall provide a monthly groundwater restoration progress report in accordance with Appendix B, to the Agencies for each month no 
later than the 10th working day of the following month. The TDH shall notify URI and USF&G of the appropriate monthly bond adjustment. 
Failure to perform on the part of URI shall mean the failure to operate within agreed upon reasonable restoration cost projections within 
Appendix A or the failure to meet the Performance Criteria in Appendix B. If the Agencies, with good cause, disapprove URI's performance, or 
reasonable restoration costs, the TDH may adjust the next month's bond reduction amount. At the conclusion of the last month, the Agencies 
shall not reduce the bond amount until they have completed the performance and financial reviews of the last month's data.  

10. Reconciliation of Expenses. Upon receipt of a monthly performance or progress report, the Agencies may review all costs and expenditures. 
The Agencies may require additional information from URI regarding expenses. No expenses in excess of those detailed in Appendix A shall 
be eligible for  
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reimbursement under this Agreement unless they have been authorized in advance, in writing, for a specific amount, by the TNRCC prior to the 
expenditure being made by URI. Upon the advance approval in writing of such costs by TNRCC, such costs will be eligible for inclusion of 
funding to URI by USF&G. If approval is not obtained such costs are not eligible for inclusion of funding to URI by USF&G. Upon funding by 
USF&G such costs would be treated comparably to all other costs shown on Appendix A regarding their eligibility for bond reductions by 
USF&G.  

11. Periodic Reporting by USF&G. Contemporaneously with funding, USF&G will provide to TNRCC and TDH a certification of monthly 
advances under this Agreement to URI by the end of each month.  

12. Surety Not an Owner or Operator. USF&G shall not be an "owner" or "operator" of the Mines by virtue of execution and delivery of and 
performance of its obligations under this Agreement. The parties' execution and delivery of this Agreement is not intended to make USF&G an 
"owner" or "operator." USF&G's role as Surety will not in any way make it responsible for any operation of the Mines, nor will it own any part 
of the Mines.  

12.a. Agencies not an Owner or Operator. TNRCC or TDH shall not be an " owner" or "operator" of the Mines by virtue of execution and 
delivery of and performance of their obligations under this Agreement. The parties' execution and delivery of this Agreement is not intended to 
make TNRCC or TDH an "owner" or "operator." TNRCC's or TDH's role in approving bond reductions will not in any way make it responsible 
for any operation. of the Mines, nor will it own any part of the Mines.  

13. Reservation of Defenses. USF&G's execution, delivery and performance under this Agreement shall not constitute, nor be deemed to 
constitute, an admission of liability or a waiver of any claims or defenses which USF&G may assert or have against URI, Inc., any indemnitors, 
or against claims made against USF&G under the Bond. The Agencies' execution, delivery or performance under this Agreement shall not 
constitute, nor be deemed to constitute, an admission of liability or waiver of any claims or defenses which the Agencies may assert or have 
against URI, Inc. relative to the Kingsville Dome and/or Rosita Mines, or USF&G.  

14. Bankruptcy of URI.  

14.1 It is the express desire, intent, and agreement of the parties (TNRCC/TDH, URI and USF&G) that in the event URI shall become a Debtor 
in a bankruptcy proceeding (by virtue of either the commencement of a voluntary or an involuntary petition) the rights of TNRCC/TDH and 
USF&G shall remain as unaffected as possible with respect to their mutual obligations under these Bonds. Accordingly, as a material element 
of this Agreement, the parties expressly agree and covenant as follows:  

14.2. URI will enter into a Stipulation satisfactory to TNRCC/TDH and USF&G setting forth sufficient facts to demonstrate its 
acknowledgment that the parties would not have entered into this Agreement absent such stipulation. The Stipulation shall further recite that, 
should URI become a Debtor in a Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceeding, it shall elect at the earliest of (1) sixty (60) days from the Petition date or 
(2) thirty (30) days from the entry of the Order for Relief in the instance where an involuntary petition is commenced to assume or reject this 
Agreement as an executory contract.  

14.3 URI and USF&G further agree that they shall take no action directly or indirectly to prevent the Bankruptcy Court from ordering URI to 
make such an accelerated election regarding assumption or rejection of this Agreement in accordance with the time frame set forth above in 
paragraph 14.2.  

14.4. In the event URI elects to assume this executory contract, URI shall cure any pending defaults within 30 days of the date it makes said 
election to assume (irrespective of the date of the  
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entry of the Order approving assumption). In the event the Bonds are called, USF&G shall be entitled to a full credit against the face amount of 
the Bonds for any partial payments distributed previously to URI in accordance with this Agreement.  

14.5. In the event URI elects to reject this executory contract, the parties agree that each will have whatever rights and obligations they have 
under this Agreement, the Bonds, and applicable law.  

14.6. All parties further acknowledge that the obligation of USF&G under these Bonds constitutes an independent obligation of USF&G as a 
surety in favor of TNRCC/TDH. URI further covenants that in its legal opinion, should URI become a debtor in a bankruptcy proceeding, that 
these Bonds constitute independent obligations of USF&G and would not constitute assets of URI's bankruptcy estate. URI further covenants 
that it shall take no action either directly or indirectly to controvert any position taken in the Bankruptcy Court by TNRCC/TDH that these 
Bonds are not property of URI's bankruptcy estate.  

14.7. URI and USF&G acknowledge that there have been extensive confidential settlement communications, privileged under Federal Rule of 
Evidence 408, leading up to the execution of this Agreement. URI, USF&G, and TNRCC/TDH further covenant that they shall never seek to 
introduce evidence of any prior negotiations that led up to this Agreement (by way of example but not by limitation, introduction of previous 
drafts of this settlement agreement as parole evidence).  

14.8 In the event of the bankruptcy of URI, the parties to this Agreement stipulate that the groundwater restoration equipment located at the 
Kingsville Dome and Rosita mines may continue to be used for groundwater restoration activities until the groundwater restoration is 
completed.  

15. Notices. Any notices required or authorized to be given by this Agreement shall be in written form. Any notices required or authorized to 
be given by this Agreement must be sent by: (a) registered or certified delivery mail, postage prepaid and return receipt requested, addressed to 
the proper party at the following address or such address as the party shall have designated to the other parties in accordance with this Section; 
or (b) personal delivery. Mailed notice shall be effective on the third (3rd) day following the date of mailing. Personal delivery shall be 
effective on the date of receipt. Notices shall be mailed to the following:  

Mr. Jeffrey A. Saitas Executive Director Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission PO Box 13087 Austin, TX 78711-3087  

Mr. Richard Ratliff, P.E.  

Texas Department of Health  
Chief Bureau of Radiation Control  

1100 West 49th Street  
Austin, TX 78756  

United States Fidelity & Guaranty Company  
c/o St. Paul Surety-Claim (MC41)  
Matthew L. Silverstein, Esquire  

5801 Smith Avenue  
Baltimore, MD 21209  
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16. Binding Effect of Obligations. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the respective parties and their successors 
and assigns.  

17. Whole Agreement. There are no terms or conditions of this Agreement, express or implied, other than expressly stated in this Agreement. 
This Agreement may be amended or modified only by an instrument in writing, signed by the parties with the same formality as this 
Agreement. This Agreement shall not be construed or interpreted to be for the benefit of any third party, and no third party shall have the right 
to enforce this Agreement without the consent of all of the parties.  

18. Multiple Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, 
but all of which shall constitute the same Agreement. Delivery of an executed copy of this Agreement via facsimile or other electronic 
transmission shall be deemed effective delivery.  

19. Severability. If any part, term or provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any 
law of the United States or the State of Texas, the validity of the remaining portions or provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and 
obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the particular part, term or provision held to be 
invalid.  

20. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with and governed by the laws of the United States and the 
State of Texas to the extent that such laws do not conflict with the laws of the United States. Nothing in this Agreement shall relieve URI of its 
obligations under the rules and regulations of TNRCC or TDH or from the requirements of TNRCC Permits UR02827, WDW 248, UR02880, 
WDW 250, or TDH License L03653.  

21. Dates. Any date that falls on a weekend or a State of Texas holiday shall mean the next regular State of Texas business day following that 
date.  

The parties have executed this Agreement effective as of January 1, 2002.  
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                           Mark S. Pelizza 
                           URI, Inc. 
                           650 S. Edmonds Lane 
                           Suite 108 
                           Lewisville, Texas 75067 
 
                           Alfred C. Chidester-Corp orate Counsel  
                           C/o Baker & Hostetler 
                           303 E. 17th Ave., Ste. 1 100 
                           Denver, Colorado 80203-1 264 
 
and copy to:               R. Kinnan Golemon 
                           Brown McCarroll, L.L.P. 
                           111 Congress Ave., Ste. 1400 
                           Austin, Texas 78701-4043  

/s/ Jeffrey A. Saitas                               /s/ Richard Ratliff 
------------------------------------------------    ---------------------------- 
Jeffrey A. Saitas, P.E., Executive Director         Richard Ratliff, P.E., Chief 
Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission      Bureau of Radiation Control 
                                                    Texas Department of Health 
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/s/ Paul K. Willmott                     /s/ Matthew L. Silverstein 
-------------------------------------    --------------------------------------- 
Paul K. Willmott, President and          Matthew L. Silverstein, Surety Attorney 
Chief Executive Officer, URI, Inc.       United States Fidelity and Guaranty 



APPENDIX A  
Restoration Expenditures  

January 1, 2002 to April 30, 2002  
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                                                 -- --------------------------------------------------- ------------  
                                                      Jan-02      Feb-02        Mar-02     Apr-02      2002 TOTAL 
 
                                                 -- --------------------------------------------------- ------------  
Kingsville Dome Direct Restoration                   $ 61,511    $ 61,511      $ 61,511   $ 61,511       $246,044 
 
PAA3 R.O. operating costs (not to be allowed                     $  5,000      $  5,000   $  5,000       $ 15,000 
if R.O. unit not operational in month) 
 
KVD PAA3 Capital                                       30,000      15,000                                $ 45,000 
 
Allotment for Power & Security                         18,750                                            $ 18,750 
 
Accounting and Environmental Salaries                   2,810       2,810         2,810      2,810       $ 11,240 
 
Engineering Salaries                                    2,900       2,900         2,900      2,900       $ 11,600 
 
Allocated Salaries                                     (7,552)     (7,552)       (7,552)    (7,552)      ($30,208)  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------  
 
Subtotal Kingsville                                   108,419      79,669        64,669     64,669       $317,426 
 
                                                 == ================================================ 
 
Cumulative KVD 2002                                  $108,419    $188,088      $252,757   $317,426 
                                                 == ================================================ 
 
Rosita Direct Restoration                              47,591      47,591        47,591     47,591        190,364 
 
Rosita Restoration Capital 
 
Allotment for Power & Security                         18,750                                              18,750 
 
Accounting and Environmental Salaries                   2,810       2,810         2,810      2,810         11,240 
 
Engineering Salaries                                    5,800       5,800         5,800      5,800         23,200 
 
Allocated Salaries                                      7,552       7,552         7,552      7,552         30,208 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------  
 
Subtotal Rosita                                        82,503      63,753        63,753     63,753        273,762 
 
 
Cumulative Rosita                                    $ 82,503    $146,256      $210,009   $273,762 
                                                 == ================================================ 
 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------  
 
Cumulative Expenditures                              $190,922    $334,344      $462,766   $591,188       $591,188 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------  



Appendix B (cont.)  

Performance Criteria  

 

B-2. Rosita Mine  

. QUANTITY PERFORMANCE. URI shall perform at a rate of at least 80% of the instantaneous design rate for the installed equipment at 
Rosita. The rate at which water is treated is calculated by adding the waste disposal well flow to the RO feed flow and subtracting the RO 
brine:  

WDW 250 maximum average capacity: 150 gal/min RO feed rate, design maximum: 585 gal/min Less RO brine contribution to WDW 250 
flow: 146 gal/min  
[WDW max + RO max - brine amount = maximum water treated : 589 gal/min]  
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                                   Appendix B 
 
                              Performance Criteria 
 
B-1.     Kingsville Dome Mine 
 
.    QUANTITY PERFORMANCE. Prior to April 1, 2002, URI shall perform at a rate 
     -------------------- 
     of at least 80% of the instantaneous design ra te for the installed 
     equipment at Kingsville Dome based on the calc ulations outlined below. The 
     rate at which water is treated is calculated b y adding the waste disposal 
     well flow to the RO feed flow and subtracting the RO brine: 
 
               WDW 248 maximum average permitted fl ow: 200 gal/min 
                    RO feed rate design maximum: 58 5 gal/min 
             Less RO brine contribution to WDW 248 flow: 146 gal/min 
 
      [WDW max + RO max - brine amount =maximum wat er treated: 639 gal/min] 
 
              (639 gal/min x 1440 min/day x 30 days /mth) x 0.80 = 
                        22.1 million gallons per mo nth) 
 
     Starting April 1, 2002, URI shall perform at a  rate of at least 80% of the 
     instantaneous design rate for the installed eq uipment at Kingsville Dome 
     based on the calculations outlined below. 
 
               WDW 248 maximum average permitted fl ow: 200 gal/min 
                    RO feed rate, design maximum: 7 85 gal/min 
             Less RO brine contribution to WDW 248 flow: 196 gal/min 
     [WDW max + RO max - brine amount -- maximum wa ter treated: 789 gal/min] 
 
               (789 gal/min x 1440 min/day x 30 day s/mth) x 0.80 = 
                        27.3 million gallons per mo nth) 
 
.    QUALITY PERFORMANCE. Quality performance shall  be assessed on a PAA by PAA 
     ------------------- 
     basis using groundwater analysis to gauge rest oration progress. To allow 
     the state staffs to evaluate restoration progr ess in terms of improvements 
     in water quality, URI shall do the following: 
 
          Collect water quality data at least once every two weeks from each 
          extractor well in the areas currently und er active restoration; data 
          shall at a minimum include Conductivity, (or TDS), uranium (as 
          U\\3\\O\\8\\), Ca, pH, and SO\\4\\. 
 
          At least one time during the term of this  Agreement, collect water 
          quality data as described above from all production area baseline 
          wells in areas previously considered rest ored. In addition, other 
          wells, as selected by the Commission, sha ll be sampled for Radium-226.  
 
          Submit water quality sampling data in bot h tabular and graphic form to  
          facilitate comparison to past restoration  progress reports, 
 
          Submit restoration water quality progress  reports monthly. 
 
     Determination of final restoration shall be do ne in accordance with 
     standard state procedures, as found in 30 TAC 331.107. Before final 
     restoration is confirmed, URI shall obtain sta bility samples from all 
     production area baseline wells and analyze for  those parameters listed in 
     the restoration table 



Appendix B (cont.)  

Performance Criteria  

Therefore, the calculated minimum rate per month is:  
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Appendix B (cont.)  

Performance Criteria  

(589 gal/min x 1440 min/day x 30 days/mth) x 0.80 = 20.4 million gallons per month)  

. QUALITY PERFORMANCE. Quality performance shall be measured on a PAA by PAA basis using groundwater analysis to gauge 
restoration progress. To allow the state staffs to evaluate restoration progress in terms of improvements in water quality, URI shall do the 
following:  

Collect water quality data at least once every two weeks from each extractor well in the areas currently under active restoration data shall at a 
minimum include Conductivity, (or TDS), uranium (as U\\3\\O\\8\\) Ca, pH, and SO\\4\\.  

At least one time during the term of this Agreement, collect water quality data as described above from all production area baseline wells in 
areas previously considered restored. In addition, other wells, as selected by the Commission, shall be sampled for Radium-226.  

Submit water quality sampling data in both tabular and graphic form to facilitate comparison to past restoration progress reports.  

Submit restoration water quality progress reports monthly.  

Determination of final restoration shall be done in accordance with standard state procedures, as found in 30 TAC 331.107. Before final 
restoration is confirmed, URI shall obtain stability samples from all production area baseline wells and analyze for those parameters listed in 
the restoration table.  
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Appendix C  

Reimbursement and Bond Reduction Schedule  
For Groundwater Restoration Activities  
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      URI Expenditures          URI Reimbursement               Bond Penal 
          Incurred                By USF&G Date               Reduction Date 
          --------                -------------               -------------- 
 
01/01/02-01/31/02                    12/31/01                    02/14/02 
 
02/01/02-02/28/02                    01/31/02                    03/14/02 
 
03/01/02-03/31/02                    02/28/02                    04/12/02 
 
04/01/02-04/31/02                    03/31/02               After final review  



Appendix D  

Texas Department of Health  

 

Bureau of Radiation Control (512) 834-6688  

Date  

United States Fidelity & Guaranty Company c/o St. Paul Surety-Claim (MC41)  
Matthew L. Silverstein, Esquire  
5801 Smith Avenue  
Baltimore, MD 21209  

CERTIFIED MAIL: _____________  

Re: Uranium Resources, Inc. (TDH License L03653) Reduction of Financial Security Bonds:  
Performance Guarantee Bond No. 41-0130-40028-96-6 Performance Guarantee Bond No. 41-0130-40040-96-6  

Dear Sirs:  

The Texas Department of Health hereby authorizes the reduction of financial security bonds issued by USF&G on behalf of Uranium 
Resources, Inc. (URI) and held by the Texas Department of Health for groundwater restoration and decommissioning of the Kingsville Dome 
and Rosita mines by the following:  

1) Reduce Performance Guarantee Bond (Bond No. 41-0130-40028-96-6 for the Kingsville Dome site) that has been in effect since December 
2, 1996, in the current penal sum of One Million Seven Hundred Forty-One Thousand Five Hundred Forty-Two Dollars ($1,741,542.00) by 
XYZ Dollars and XYZ Cents ($XXXXXXXXXX) to the reduced penal sum of xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx Dollars and XYZ Cents 
($XXXXXXXXXX); and  

2) Reduce Performance Guarantee Bond (Bond No. 41-0130-40040-96-6 for the Rosita site) that has been in effect since November 26, 1996, 
in the current penal sum of One Million Nine Hundred Nine Thousand Six Hundred Forty-Three Dollars ($1,909,643.00) by XYZ Dollars and 
XYZ Cents ($XXXXXXXX) to the reduced penal sum of xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx Dollars and XYZ Cents ($XXXXXXXX).  
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William R Archer III, M.D.    1100 West 49th Street         Charles E. Bell, MD. 
Commissioner                Austin, Texas 78756-318 9       Executive Deputy Commissioner  
                                 (512) 458-7111 



United States Fidelity & Guaranty Company c/o St. Paul Surety-Claim (MC41)  
Matthew L. Silverstein, Esquire  
Date  
Page Two  

The approved bond reductions are based on USF&G's certification of the amounts advanced to URI for groundwater restoration and 
decommissioning work performed by URI at the Kingsville Dome and Rosita mines under the Second Kingsville Dome and Rosita Mines 
Agreement dated xxxxxx. The TDH issues these bond reductions with the understanding that TDH and USF&G make no representations, 
express or implied, as to the restoration work performed by URI, and that these bond reductions are final as of this date for all purposes.  

Sincerely,  

Richard A. Ratliff, P.E., Chief  
Bureau of Radiation Control  

cc: Dale Kohler, TNRCC  
Kinnan Golemon  
Mark Pelizza, URI  
Tom Godard, TDH  
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STIPULATION OF URI, INC., THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT  
OF HEALTH, AND THE TEXAS NATURAL RESOURCE CONSERVAT ION  

COMMISSION REGARDING CERTAIN FACTS  

URI, Inc., ("URI"); the Texas Department of Health, ("TDH"); and the Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission, ("TNRCC") by and 
through their respective counsel, stipulate as follows:  

1. URI holds TDH Radioactive Material License L03653 and TNRCC Underground Injection Control Permits UR02827 (Kingsville Dome 
Mine) and UR02890 (Rosita Mine) authorizing its in situ uranium mining operations in Kleberg and Duval Counties, Texas.  

2. Nothing in this stipulation changes, modifies, or amends any license, permit, or production area authorization requirement.  

3. Because URI was financially unable to continue ground water restoration at the Kingsville Dome and Rosita Mines, the Kingsville Dome 
and Rosita Mines Agreement and subsequent Second Kingsville Dome and Rosita Mines Agreement was executed by URI, TDH, TNRCC, and 
United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company ("USF&G").  

4. Under the terms of the Kingsville Dome and Rosita Mines Agreement and Second Kingsville Dome and Rosita Mines Agreement, URI 
received funding from USF&G to pay for reasonable restoration costs at the Kingsville Dome and Rosita Mines. The financial assurance bonds 
(Performance Guarantee Bond No. 41-0130-40028-96-6 and Performance Guarantee Bond No. 41-0130-40040-96-6, hereinafter "Bonds") for 
groundwater restoration issued to TDH by USF&G on behalf of URI have been reduced according to the terms of the Kingsville Dome and 
Rosita Mines Agreement and Second Kingsville Dome and Rosita Mines Agreement.  

5. As a material element of the Second Kingsville Dome and Rosita Mines Agreement, URI agreed to enter this stipulation.  

6. The TDH and TNRCC would not have executed the Second Kingsville Dome and Rosita Mines Agreement without this stipulation.  

7. URI shall elect at the earliest of (1) sixty days from the Petition date or  
(2) thirty days from the entry of the Order for Relief in the instance where an involuntary petition is commenced to assume or reject the Second 
Kingsville Dome and Rosita Mines Agreement as an executory contract.  

8. URI shall take no action directly or indirectly to prevent the Bankruptcy Court from ordering URI to make such an accelerated election 
regarding assumption or rejection of the Second Kingsville Dome and Rosita Mines Agreement in accordance with the time frame set forth 
above in paragraph 7.  

9. Should URI elect to reject the Second Kingsville Dome and Rosita Mines Agreement as an executory contract, the TDH/TNRCC will retain 
whatever rights and obligations they have under the Bonds, including the right to call in the bonds for performance or payment.  

10. All parties acknowledge that the obligations of USF&G under the Bonds constitutes an independent obligation of USF&G as a surety in 
favor of TDH/TNRCC.  

11. URI covenants that in its legal opinion the Bonds constitute an independent obligation of USF&G and do not constitute assets of URI's 
bankruptcy estate.  

12. URI covenants that it shall take no action either directly or indirectly to controvert any position taken in the Bankruptcy Court by 
TNRCC/TDH that these Bonds are not property of URI's bankruptcy estate.  
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Dated this 8th day of January, 2002.  
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/s/ Paul K. Willmott 
-------------------------------------------------- 
Paul K. Willmott 
Chairman, President, and CEO 
URI, Inc. 
 
 
/s/ Jeffrey Saitas 
-------------------------------------------------- 
Jeffrey Saitas ,Executive Director 
Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission 
 
 
/s/ Richard Ratliff 
-------------------------------------------------- 
Richard Ratliff, Chief 
Bureau of Radiation Control 
Texas Department of Health 
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AGREED ORDER  

I. JURISDICTION  

The Texas Department of Health ("Department" or "TDH") is authorized to enforce Tx. Health and Safety Code Chapter 401, ("Act") and the 
Department's rules found at 25 Tex. Admin. Code Chapter 289 ("Rules") relating to the regulation of sources of radiation, including in situ 
uranium mines. The Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission ("TRNCC") also has jurisdiction over the operation of in situ uranium 
mines. The Department is the lead agency for enforcing the financial security requirements regarding in situ uranium mines  

 

URI, Inc. ("URI") possesses a radioactive materials license from the Department and is subject to the aforementioned Act and Rules. URI's 
license no. L03653 covers the Kingsville Dome mine in Kleberg County and the Rosita and Vasquez mines located in Duval Counties whose 
locations are more particularly described in the license. URI is not currently engaged in the mining of uranium (except the incidental removal 
of uranium during the groundwater restoration process).  

III. FACTS  

On January 8, 2002, the Department, the TNRCC, URI and United States Fidelity & Guaranty Company executed the Second Kingsville Dome 
and Rosita Mines Agreement. This Agreement acknowledged that URI has serious financial difficulties in meeting its obligations. On January 
16, 2002, based upon a review of financial security, the Department's Bureau of Radiation Control ("BRC") requested that URI post additional 
financial security under its license and threatened enforcement action against URI if it failed to post the additional financial security. URI is 
unable to post the additional financial security at this time.  

IV. RESPONSE  

URI responded to the Department's request letter by filing an objection and requesting a conference to attempt to resolve the matter.  

VI. SETTLEMENT  

Discussions were held between representatives of the Department and URI and a settlement was reached. This settlement, the terms of which 
are contained in this Agreed Order, is based on the desire of the Department to see that appropriate and cost effective restoration and 
decommissioning of URI's mine sites occurs. The TNRCC was notified of the discussions and the settlement agreed upon by the Department 
and URI.  
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                               NO. A3089-556-2002 
 
IN THE MATTER OF                                BEF ORE THE TEXAS 
 
URI, INC.                                       DEP ARTMENT OF HEALTH 
 
                                                AUS TIN, TEXAS 

under 25 Tex. Admin. Code (S) 289.101(f). 
 
                                 II. RESPONDENT 



VII. COMPLETE SETTLEMENT  

The terms contained herein are the complete settlement of all current issues regarding URI's financial security under its license.  

A. WAIVER OF HEARING AND AGREEMENT REGARDING SIGNAT URE  

In exchange for the execution of this Agreed Order, URI waives any right to a hearing. URI agrees that this Order may be signed by the 
Commissioner of Health or his designee.  

B. NO WAIVER WITH REGARD TO FUTURE VIOLATIONS  

The Department does not waive the right to take legal action against URI for any future violations of TDH rules or its license which may be 
committed by URI.  

C. COMPLETE UNDERSTANDING  

URI acknowledges that it understands the terms of this settlement, enters into the settlement freely, and agrees to the terms of this order.  

D. NO RIGHT TO APPEAL  

URI waives the right to judicial review of this Order.  

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED that the deadline for URI to post additional financial security for its mine sites is extended for 365 days from 
the date of this Order so long as the following conditions are met by URI:  

1. URI shall not conduct any mining of uranium at its mines (except the incidental removal of uranium during the groundwater restoration 
process) during this period of time, unless additional financial security for its license is approved by and posted with the Department in 
consultation with the TNRCC;  
2. URI shall not conduct any mining at its mines (except the incidental removal of uranium during the groundwater restoration process), unless 
authorized by appropriate permits issued by the TNRCC;  
3. URI shall be in substantial compliance with TDH License No. L03653 and all permits issued by the TNRCC, including Nos. UR02827-001, 
UR02880-001 and UR03050-001;  
4. URI shall fully cooperate with all inspections by the Department and the TNRCC and provide all information requested by either agency;  
5. In the case of its bankruptcy, URI shall allow the groundwater restoration equipment located at the mines to be used for groundwater 
restoration activities until groundwater restoration is complete.  

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that should the Department determine that URI has not complied with this Order, the Department shall notify 
URI in writing and URI shall immediately post with the Department the financial security as stated in the January 16, 2002 letter from the BRC 
to URI.  

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Department shall review this matter at the end of the referenced 365 day period and may extend this 
Order for another 365 day period. Approval of an extension of this Order is solely within the discretion of the Department but will not be 
unreasonably withheld.  

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that TDH license No. L03653 license shall remain in full effect in timely renewal status for the referenced 365 
day period.  
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IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Order shall end if URI posts additional financial security acceptable to the Department in consultation 
with the TNRCC during the referenced 365 day period.  

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED THAT all correspondence with the Department will be directed to Ms. Cathy McGuire, Bureau of Radiation 
Control, Texas Department of Health, 1100 W. 49/th/ St., Austin, TX 78756, Fax (512) 834-6654.  

Signed the 8th day of March, 2002.  
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/s/ Richard Ratliff 
---------------------------------- 
Richard Ratliff, P.E., Chief 
Bureau of Radiation Control 
Texas Department of Health 



Approved as to form and substance:  
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End of Filing  

  

© 2005 | EDGAR Online, Inc.  

/s/ Tom Godard 
---------------------------- 
Tom Godard 
Assistant General Counsel 
Texas Department of Heatlh 
 
 
 
/s/ Jep Hill 
---------------------------- 
Jep Hill 
Attorney for URI, Inc. 


